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Independent Auditor’s Report info@gmj.co.in

To the Members of Edelcap Securities Limited
Report on the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Opinion

We have audited the accompanying Ind AS financial statements of Edeleap Securities Limited (“the Company™),
which comprise the Balance sheet as at March 31 2023, the Statement of Profit and Loss, including the statement of
Other Comprehensive Income, the Cash Flow Statement and the statement of Changes in Equity for the year then
ended, and notes to the financial statements, including a summary of significant accounting policies and other
explanatory information.

In our opinion and to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the aforesaid Ind AS
financial statements give the information required by the Companies Act, 2013 (“the Act™) in the manner so required
and give a true and fair view in conformity with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, of the state of
affairs of the Company as at March 31, 2023, its loss including other comprehensive income, its cash flows and the
changes in equity for the year ended on that date.

Basis for Opinion

We conducted our audit of the Ind AS financial statements in accordance with the Standards on Auditing (SAs), as
specified under section 143(10) of the Act. Qur responsibilities under those Standards are further described in the
‘Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements’ section of our report. We are independent
of the Company in accordance with the ‘Code of Ethics™ issued by the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (the
‘ICAL) together with the ethical requirements that are relevant to our audit of the financial statements under the
provisions of the Act and the Rules thereunder, and we have fulfilled our other ethical responsibilities in accordance
with these requirements and the Code of Ethics. We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our audit opinion on the Ind AS financial statements.

Other Enformation

The Company’s management and Board of Directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the Director’s Report, but does not include the Ind AS financial statements and
our auditor’s report thereon. The Company’s Director’s Report is expecied to be made available to us after the date of
this auditor’s report.

Our opinion on the Ind AS financial statements does not cover the other information and we will not express any form
of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the Ind AS financial statements, our responsibility is to read the other information
identified above when it becomes available and, in doing so, consider whether the other information is materially
inconsistent with the firancial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit or otherwise appears to be materially
misstated. When we read the Company’s Director’s Report, if we conclude that there is material misstatement therein,
we are required to communicate the matter to those charged with governance and take necessary actions, as applicable
under the relevant laws and regulations.
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Management’s Responsibilities for the Ind AS Financial Statements

The Company’s Management and Board of Directors are responsible for the matters stated in section 134(5) of the Act
with respect to the preparation of these Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view of the financial
position, financial performance including other comprehensive income, cash flows and changes in equity of the
Company in accordance with the accounting principles generally accepted in India, including the Indian Accounting
Standards (Ind AS} specified under section 133 of the Act read with the Companies (Indian Accounting Standards)
Rules, 2015, as amended. This responsibility also includes maintenance of adequate accounting records in accordance
with the provisions of the Act for safeguarding of the assets of the Company and for preventing and detecting frauds
and other irregularities: sefection and application of appropriate accounting policies; making judgments and estimates
that are reasonable and prudent; and the design, implementation and maintenance of adequate internal financial
controls, that were operating effectively for ensuring the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the Ind AS financial statements that give a true and fair view and are free from
material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the Ind AS financial statements, management and Board of Directors are responsible for assessing the
Company’s ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going concern and using
the going concemn basis of accounting unless management either intends to liquidate the Company or fo cease
operations, or has no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Board of Directors is also responsible for overseeing the Company’s financial reporting process.

Auditor’s Responsibilities for the Audit of the Ind AS Financial Statements

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the Ind AS financial statements as a whole are free
from material misstatement, whetber due to fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.
Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee that an audit conducted in accordance with SAs
will always detect a material misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be expected to influence the economic
decisions of users taken on the basis of these Ind AS financial statements,

As part of an audit in accordance with SAs, we exercise professional judgment and maintain professional skepticism
throughout the audit. We also:

+  Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the Ind AS financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error, design and perform audit procedures responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient
and appropriate to provide a basis for cur opinion. The risk of not detecting a material misstatenient resulting from
fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions,
misrepresentations, or the override of internal control.

»  Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances. Under section 143(3){i) of the Act, we are also responsible for expressing our
opinion on whether the Company has adequate internal financial contrels system in place and the operating
effectiveness of such controls.

*  Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting poticies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates and
related disclosures made by management.

»  Conclude on the appropriateness of management’s use of the going concern basis of accounting and, based on the
audit evidence obtained, whether a material uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast
significant doubt on the Company’s ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a material
uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s report to the related disclosures in the
financial statements or, if such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based on the

T, audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor’s report. However, future events or conditions may cause the

N{ompany to cease to continue as a going concern.
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+ Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the Ind AS financial statements, including the
disclosures, and whether the Ind AS financial statements represent the uaderlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair presentation.

Materiality is the magnitude of misstatements in the Ind AS financial statements that, individually or in aggregate,
makes it probable that the economic decisions of a reasonably knowledgeable user of the financial statements may be
influenced. We consider quantitative materiality and qualitative factors in (i) planning the scope of our audit work and
in evaluating the resuits of our work; and (ii) to evaluate the effect of any identified misstatements in the financial

statements,

We comimunicate with those charged with governance regarding, among other matters, the planned scope and timing of
the audit and significant audit findings, including any significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during
our audit.

We also provide those charged with governance with a statement that we have complied with relevant ethical

requirements regarding independence, and to comumunicate with them all relationships and other matters that may
reasonably be thought to bear on our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.

Report on Other Legal and Regulatory Requirements

1. As required by the Companies (Auditor’s Report) Order, 2020 (“the Order™), issued by the Central Government of
India in terms of sub-section {11) of section 143 of the Act, we give in the “Annexure A" a statement on the
matters specified in paragraphs 3 and 4 of the Order.

2

As required by Section 143(3) of the Act, we report that:

(a) We have sought and obtained all the information and explanations which to the best of our knowledge and
belief were necessary for the purposes of our audit;

(b} In our opinion, proper books of account as required by law have been kept by the Company so far as it appears
from our examination of those books;

{c} The Balance Sheet, the Statement of Profit and l.oss including the Statement of Other Comprehensive Income,
the Cash Flow Statement and Statement of Changes in Equity deait with by this Report are in agreement with
the books of account;

(d) In our opinion, the aforesaid Ind AS financial statements comply with the Accounting Standards specified
under Section 133 of the Act, read with Companies (Indian Accounting Standards) Rules, 2015, as amended;

(¢) On the basis of the written representations received from the directors as on March 31, 2023 taken on record by
the Board of Directors, none of the directors is disqualified as on March 31, 2023 from being appointed as a
director in terms of Section 164 (2) of the Act;

(f) With respect to the adequacy of the internal financial controls over financial reporting of the Company with
reference to these Ind AS financial statements and the operating effectiveness of such controls, refer to our
separate Report in “Annexure B” to this report;

(g) 1nour opinion, the managerial remuneration for the year ended March 31, 2023 has been paid / provided by the
Company to its directors in accordance with the provisions of section 197 read with Schedule V to the Act;

(h) With respect to the other matters to be included in the Auditor’s Report in accordance with Rule |1 of the
Companies {(Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014, as amended in our opinion and to the best of our information
and according to the explanations given to us:

i. the Company does not have any pending litigations which wouid impact its tfinancial position;

ii. the Company did not have any long-term contracts including derivative contracts for which there were
any material foreseeable losses; and
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iii. there were no amounts which were required to be transferred to the Investor Education and Protection
Fund by the Company.

iv. a) The management has represenied to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 51(i1) to the financial statements, no funds have been advanced or loaned or invested
(either from horrowed funds or share premium or any other sources or kind of funds) by the
Company to or in any other person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {(*Intermediaries™),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shali,
whether, directly or indirectly lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner
whatsoever by or on behalf of the Company (“Ultimate Beneficiary”) or provide any guarantee,
security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiary;

b) The management has represented to us that, to the best of its knowledge and belief, as disclosed in
the note 51(iii) to the financial statements, no funds have been received by the Company from any
person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities (“Funding Parties™), with the understanding,
whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Company shall, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of
the Funding Party (“Ultimate Beneficiaries™) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on
behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries; and

c) Based on such audit procedures that were considered reasonable and appropriate in the
circumstances, nothing has come to our notice that has caused us to believe that the
representations under sub-clause (a) and (b} contain any material misstatement.

v. No dividend has been declared or paid during the period by the Company.

vi. Proviso to Rule 3(1) of the Companies {Accounts) Rules, 2014 for maintaining books of account
using accounting software which has a feature of recording audit trail (edit log) facility is applicable to
the Company with effect from Aprit 1, 2023, and accordingly, reporting under Rule 11(g) of
Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 is not applicable for the financial year ended March 31,
2023,

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountants
Firm Registratiop’No. 103429W

M

Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership No.:39870

UDIN: 23039070BGTOUL9579

Place: Mumbai
Date: | b Fﬂw‘j 2ot
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Annexure A to the Auditors’ Report

The Annexure referred to in our Independent Auditors’ Report to the members of Edelcap Securities Limited
(‘the Company’) on the financial statements for the year ended March 31, 2023, we report that:

(i) {a)(A) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars, including quantitative details and
situation of property, plant and equipment.

(B) The Company has maintained proper records showing full particulars of intangible assets.

{b) As explained to us, the Company has a regular programmme of physical verification of its property, plant
and equipment by which all the property, plant and equipment are verified in a phased manner over a
period of three years. In our opinion this periodicity of physical verification is reasonable having regard
to the size of the Company and nature of its assets, No material discrepancies were noticed on such
verification.

(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, there is no immovable property (other than properties where
the Company is the lessee and the lease agreements are duly executed in favour of the lessee), held by the
Company and accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(1)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the
Company.

(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not revalued
its Property, Plant and Equipment {including Right of use assets) and intangible assets during the year
ended March 31, 2023.

{e) According to the information and explanations given by the management, there are no proceedings initiated
or are pending against the Company for holding any benami property under the Prohibition of Benami
Property Transactions Act, 1988 and rules made thereunder,

(i) (a) The Company has conducted physical verification of inventory on the basis of statement received from
depository participants in respect of securities held as inventory, at reasonable intervals during the year. No
material discrepancies have been noticed on such physical verification.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not been sanctioned working
capital limits in excess of Rs. five crores in aggregate from banks or financial institutions during any point
of time of the year on the basis of security of current assets. Accordingly, the requirement to report under
clause 3(ii}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

i, (a) {(A) During the year the Company has not provided loans, advances in the nature of loans, stood guarantee
or provided security to its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates,

(B) During the year, the Company has provided loans aggregating to Rs. 1,080.75 million to parties other
than its subsidiaries, joint ventures and associates and the balance outstanding as at the balance sheet
date with respect to such loans is Rs. 0.66 miliion. Further as per the information and explanations
given to us by the management, the Company has not granted advances in nature of loans or given
any guarantee or provided any security during the year to parties other than its subsidiaries, joint
ventures and associates.

(b) According to the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the terms and conditions of the grant of all loans and
advances in the nature of loans and security provided during the year to companies are not prejudicial to
the Company's interest. Further as per the information given by the management, during the year the
Company has not made any investments in companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or any other

parties.
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(c) According to the information and explanations given by the management and on the basis of our
examination of the records of the Company, the Company has granted loans and advances in the nature of
loans to parties, the schedule of repayment of principal and payment of interest has been stipulated and the
repayment or receipts are regular.

{d) There are no amount of loans and advances in the nature of loans granted to companies, firms, limited
liability partnerships or any other parties which are overdue for more than ninety days.

(e} In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, there were no loans or
advance in the nature of loan granted to companies which was fallen due during the year that have been
renewed or extended or fresh loans granted to settle the overdues of existing loans given to the same
parties.

(f) The Company has not granted any l[oans or advances in the nature of loans, either repayable on demand or
without specifying any terms ot period of repayment to companies, firms, Limited Liability Partnerships or
any other parties. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{iii)(f) of the Order is not applicable to
the Company.

{iv) In our opinion and according to the information and explanations given to us, the Company has not advanced
loans to directors / to a Company in which the director is interested to which provisions of section 185 of the
Companies Act, 2013 apply and hence not commented upon. In our opinion and according to the information
and explanations given to us, investments in respect of which the provisions of section 186 of the Companies
Act 2013 are applicable have been complied with by the Company.

(v} According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has neither accepted
any deposits from the public nor accepted any amounts which are deemed to be deposits within the meaning of
sections 73 to 76 of the Companies Act and the rules made thereunder, to the extent applicable. Accordingly,
the requirement to report on clause 3{v) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{vi) To the best of our knowledge and as explained by the management of the Company, the Company is not in the
business of sale of any goods or provision of such services as prescribed u/s 148 (1) of Companies Act, 2013.
Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3{vi) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(vii) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, ameunts deducted/ accrued in the books of aceount in respect of undisputed
statutory dues including provident fund, income tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues,
applicable to it, have been regularly deposited during the year by the Company with the appropriate
authorities. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, service tax, duty of excise, duty of
custoin, sales tax, value added tax and cess are not applicable to the Company.

According to the information and explanations given to us, no undisputed amounts payable in respect of
provident fund, income-tax, goods and service tax, cess and other statutory dues were outstanding, at the
year end, for a period of more than six months from the date they became payable.

{b) According to the information and explanation given to us, there are no dues of, provident fund, goods and
service tax and cess which have not been deposited with the appropriate authorities on account of any
dispute. The provisions relating to employees’ state insurance, service tax, duty of excise, duty of
custom, sales tax, value added tax and cess are not applicable to the Company. The dues outstanding in
respect of income tax on account of dispute, are as follows:

Name of the statute | Nature of dues | Amount (Rs.) Period to which | Forum where
the amount relates | dispute is
pending
i, Income Tax Act, 1961 | Income Tax 63,92,170 AY.2017-18 CIT (A)
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(viii)  The Company has not surrendered or disclosed any transaction, previously unrecorded in the books of account,
in the tax assessments under the Income Tax Act, 1961 as income during the year. Accordingly, the
requirement to report on clause 3(viii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(ix} {(a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, the Company has not defaulted in repayment of loans or other borrowings or in
the payment of interest thereon to any lender. -

(b) The Company has not been declared wilful defaunlter by any bank or financial institution or other lender.

(c) The Company has not taken any term loan during the year. Hence, the requirement to report on clause
3{ix)(c) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(d) In cur opinion and on an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, during the year
no funds raised on short-term basis have been used for long-term purposes by the Company.

(e) On an overall examination of the financial statements of the Company, the Company has not taken any
funds from any entity or person on account of or to meet the obligations of its subsidiaries, associates or
joint ventures,

() The Company has not raised loans during the year on the pledge of securities held in its subsidiaries, joint
ventures or associate companies. Hence, the requirement to report under clause 3{(Ix)(f) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(x) (a) The Company has not raised any money during the year by way of initial public offer / further public offer
(including debt instruments) hence, the requirement to report on clause 3(x)a) of the Order is not
applicable to the Company.

(b) The Company has not made any preferential allotment or private placement of shares /fully or partially or
optionally convertible debentures during the year under audit and hence, the requirement to report on
clause 3(x)}(b) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

{x1) {(a) According to the information and expianations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company we report that no fraud by the Company or on the Company has been noticed or
reported during the year.

{b) According to the information and explanations given to us, during the year, no report under sub-section
(12) of section 143 of the Companies Act, 2013 has been filed by secretarial auditor, or by us in Form
ADT — 4 as prescribed under Rule 13 of Companies (Audit and Auditors) Rules, 2014 with the Central
Government,

(c) As represented to us by the management, there are no whistle blower complaints received by the Company
during the year.

(xii) The Company is not a Nidhi Company as per the provisions of the Companies Act, 2013. Therefore, the
requirement to report on clauses 3(xii)(a) to 3(xii){c) of the Order is not applicable to the Comparny.

(xiii)  According to the information and explanations given by the management, transactions with the related
parties are in compliance with sections 188 of Companies Act, 2013 where applicable and the details
have been disclosed in the notes to the financial statements, as required by the applicable accounting
standards. The provisions of section |77 are not applicable to the Company and accordingly the
requirements to report on clause 3(xiii) of the Order insofar as it relates to section 177 of the Act is not
applicable to the Company.

(xiv) (&) In our opinion and based on our examination, the Company has an internal audit system commensurate
with the size and nature of its business.
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(xv) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Company has not entered into
non-cash transactions with its directors or persons connected with its directors and hence requirement te report
on clause 3(xv) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xvi}) (&) According to the information and explanations given to us, the provisions of section 45-]A of the Reserve
Bank of India Act, 1934 are not applicable to the Company. Accordingly, the requirement to report on
clause 3(xvi)(a) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(b)Y The Company has not conducted any Non-Banking Financial or Housing Finance activities without
obtained a valid Certificate of Registration (CoR) from the Reserve Bank of India as per the Reserve Bank
of India Act, 1934,

(c) Based on our examination, the Company is not a Core Investment Company as defined in the regulations
made by Reserve Bank of India. Accordingly, the requirement to report on clause 3(xvi)(c) of the Order is
not applicable to the Company.

{(d) According to the information and explanations given by the management, the Group has one Core
Investment Company as part of the Group.

(xviiy The Company has incurred cash losses amounting to Rs. 403.25 Million in the current year. In the immediately
preceding financial year, the Company had not incurred cash losses.

(xviii) There has been no resignation of the statutory auditors during the year and accordingly requirement to report
on Clause 3(xviii) of the Order is not applicable to the Company.

(xix)  On the basis of the financial ratios disclosed in note 51(iv) to the financial statements, ageing and expected
dates of realization of financial assets and payment of financial liabilities, other information accompanying the
financial statements, our knowledge of the Board of Directors and management plans and based on our
exarnination of the evidence supporting the assumptions, nothing has come to our attention, which causes us to
believe that any material uncertainty exists as on the date of the audit report that Company is not capable of
meeting its liabilities existing at the date of balance sheet as and when they fall due within a period of one year
from the balance sheet date. We, however, state that this is not an assurance as to the future viability of the
Company. We further state that our reporting is based on the facts up to the date of the audit report and we
neither give any guarante¢ nor any assurance that all liabilities falling due within a period of one year from the
balance sheet date, will get discharged by the Company as and when they fall due.

(xx) (a) According to the information and explanations given to us and on the basis of our examination of the
records of the Company, there are no unspent amounts in respect of other than ongoing projects, that are
required to be transferred to a fund specified in Schedule VII of the Companies Act (the Act), in
compliance with second proviso to sub section 5 of section 135 of the Act, This matter has been disclosed
in note 37.4 to the financial statements.

(b) According to the information and explanations given to us, there are no unspent amounts in respect of
ongoing projects, that are required to be transferred to a special account in compliance of provision of sub
section (6) of section 135 of Companies Act. This matter has been disclosed in note 37.4 to the financial
staiements.

(xxi) The Report is patt of standalone financials of the Company hence the requirement to report on clause 3(xxi) of
the Order is not applicable to the Company.

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accoaintants
Firm Registratfon No. 103420W

Jile

Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership No.:39070
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Annexure B to the Auditors’ Report

Annexure B the Independent Auditor’s report of even date on the financial statements of Edelcap Securities
Limited (*the Company™}

Report on the Internal Financial Controls under Clause (i) of Sub-section 3 of Section 143 of the Companies Act,
2013 (“the Act”)

We have audited the internal financial confrols over financial reporting of Edelecap Securities Limited (*the
Company™} as of March 31, 2023 in conjunction with our audit of financial statements of the Company for the year
ended on that date.

Management’s Responsibility for Internal Financial Controls

The Company’s management is responsible for establishing and maintaining internal financial controls based on the
internal control over financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of
internal control stated in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls over Financial Reporting issued by
the Institute of Chartered Accountants of India (‘ICAT’). These responsibilities include the design, implementation and
maintenance of adequate internal financial controls that were operating effectively for ensuring the orderly and etficient
conduct of its business, including adherence to company’s policies, the safeguarding of its assets, the prevention and
detection of frauds and errors, the accuracy and completeness of the accounting records, and the timely preparation of
reliable financial information, as required under the Companies Act, 2013 (the *Act’).

Auditors’ Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the Company's internal financial controls over financial reporting based
on our audit. We conducted our audit in accordance with the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls
over Financial Reporting (the “Guidance Note™) and the Standards on Auditing, issued by ICAI and deemed to be
prescribed under section 143(10} of the Companies Act, 2013, to the extent applicable to an audit of internal financial
controls, both applicable to an audit of Internal Financial Controls and, both issued by the Institute of Chartered
Accountants of India. Those Standards and the Guidance Note require that we comply with ethical requirements and
plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether adequate iniernal financial controls over
financial reporting was established and maintained and if such controls operated effectively in all material respects.

Our audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the adequacy of the internal financial controls
system over financial reporting and their operating effectiveness. Qur audit of internal financial controls over financial
reporting included obtaining an understanding of internal financial controls over financial reporting, assessing the risk
that a material weakness exists, and testing and evaluating the design and operating effectiveness of internal control
based on the assessed risk. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’s judgment, including the assessment of the
risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or error.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for our audit
opinion on the Company’s internal financial controls system over financial reporting,

Meaning of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting

A company's internal financial control over financial reporting is a process designed to provide reasonable assurance
regarding the reliability of financial reporting and the preparation of financial statements for external purposes in
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles. A company's internal financiai control over financial
reporting includes those policies and procedures that (1) pertain to the maintenance of records that, in reasonabie detail,
accurately and fairy reflect the transactions and dispositicns of the assets of the company; (2) provide reasonable
assurance that transactions are recorded as necessary to permit preparation of financial statemenis in accordance with
generally accepted accounting principles, and that receipts and expenditures of the company are being made enly in
accordance with authorisations of management and directors of the company; and (3) provide reasonable assurance
regarding prevention or timely detection of unauthorised acquisition, use, or disposition of the company's assets that
could have a material effect on the financial statements.




Inherent Limitations of Internal Finaneial Controls Over Financial Reporting

Because of the inherent limitations of internal financial controls over financial reporting, including the possibility of
collusion or improper management override of controls, material misstatements due to error or fraud may occur and not
be detected. Also, projecticns of any evaluation of the internal financial controls over financial reporting to future
periods are subject to the risk that the internal financial control over financial reporting may become inadequate because
of changes in conditions, or that the degree of compliance with the policies or procedures may deteriorate.

Opinion

In our opinion, to the best of our information and according to the explanations given to us, the Company has, in all
material respects, an adequate internal financial controls system over financial reporting and such internal financial
controls over financial reporting were operating effectively as at March 31, 2023, based on the internal control over
financial reporting criteria established by the Company considering the essential components of internal control stated
in the Guidance Note on Audit of Internal Financial Controls Over Financial Reporting issued by the Institute of
Chartered Accountants of India.

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accounta
Firm Registration Mo. 103429W

A

Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership No.:39070

UDIN: 2303%070BGTOULYS79

Place: Mumbai

Date: H; mog 2633



Edelcap Securities Limited
Balance Sheet
{Currency : Indian rugees in millions)

Asat As at
Note 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
ASSETS
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 7 17.28 1079
Bank balances ather than cash and cash equivalents 8 7.36 7.32
Derivative financiat instruments g 2618 32.47
Stock in trade 10 2,493.78 789.91
Trade receivables i1 2430 0.80
Loans 12 - 951.84
Investments 13 2,730.13 2,734.00
Qther financial assets 14 17.08 75.41
5,316.71 4,602.54
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {net) 15 48.00 ' 45.65
Deferred tax assets (net) 16 234.68 230.46
Property, pfant and equipment 17 (a) 34.22 8.18
Other Intangible assets 17 {b) 0.32 0.00
Other non- firancial assets 18 74.61 31.89
391.82 316.18
TOTAL ASSETS 5,708.53 4,918.72
LIABILITIES AND EQUITY
LIABILITIES
Financial liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 9 22,12 -
Trade payables
{i) total cutstanding dues of micro enterprises and smal! enterprises - .65
(if) totaf outstanding dues of creditors other than micro enterprises and
small enterprisas 19 3648 12.88
Borrowings (other than debt securities) 20 1,564.51 -
Subordinated liabilities 21 - 4,133.13
Other financial liabilities 22 218.10 141.04
1,841.21 4,287.70
Non-financtal liabilities
Current tax liabilities (net) 23 5.17 5.65
Provisions 24 33.31 20.87
Other non-financial liabilities 25 11.44 5.43
50,52 31.95
EQUITY
Equity share capital 26 389.25 3.00
instruments entirely eguity in nature 27 3,250.00 -
Other equity 28 177.55 596.07
3,816.80 599.07
TOTAL LEABILITIES AND EQUITY 5,708.53 4,918.72
Significant accounting poficies and notes forming part of the financial 1-52
statemnents

This is the Balance Sheet referred t¢ in our report of even date.

For GMJ & Co.
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Chief Financiof Qfficer Company Secretary
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Edelcap Securities Limited
Statement of Profit and Loss

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Note For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Revenue from operations
interest income 29 159.92 218.15
Dividend income 30 2.54 0.88
Fee and commission income 31 - 0.4%
Net gain on fair value changes 32 217.32 398.59
Total revenue from operations 379.78 618.11
Other income 33 3.09 0.90
Total income 382.87 §19.01
Expenses
Finance costs 34 42.95 50.46
Impairmeant on financial instruments 35 {0.08} Q.17
Employee benefits expense 36 471.49 242,68
Depreciation, amortisation and impairment 17{a &b) 11.40 5.83
Other expenses 37 279.38 21573
Total expenses 805.14 514.85
Profit / {Loss) before tax {422.27) 104.16
Tax expenses:
Current tax - {3.46}
Deferred tax {4.02) 30.00
Profit /{Loss) for the year [418.25) 77.62
Other comprehensive income { OCH}
Iterns that will not be reclassified to profit or loss
Remeasurement toss on defined benefit plans {OC1) {0.77) {0.19)
Less: Income tax relating to items that will not be
reclassified to profit or loss 0.19 0.05
Other Camprehensive Income {0.58) (0.14)
Total comprehensive income (418.83) 77.48
Earnings per eguity share (Face value of Rs 10 each):
Basic and diluted 40 {262.67} 258,72
Significant accounting policies and notes forming part of the financiai 1-52

statements

This is the Statement of Profit and Loss referred to in our report of even date.

For and on behgif of Board of Directars

quila L&améﬁ_m

for GMIJ & Co.
Chartered Accounta;
[CAl Firm Registraffon No. 103429W

d

Haridas Bhat tu Barman Roy Piydsh Chamria
Partner xecutive Directar ExBcutive Director
Membership No. 033070 DIN - 08050620 DiN - 08814424
Ritesh Jain Akash Soni
Chief Financiol Officer Company Secretary
Mumbai Mumbai

16 May 2023 16 May 2023




Edelcap Securities Limited
Cash flow statement

(Currency : indian rupees in mitlions)
For the year ended for the year ended

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
A Cash flow from operating activities
(Loss} / Profit before taxation (422.27) 104.16
Adjustments for
Interest income {35.14} (105.33})
Depreciation 11.40 5.83
ESOP reversal on lapse of vesting pericd 0.30 2.18
lenpairment of financial instruments 0.08 {0.17)
Profit on sale of fixed assets (0.03) {0.15)
Provision for gratuity and compensated absences 6.84 2.70
Fair value of financial fnstruments {7.02) {26.60)
Interest income investment {2.90) 0.00
Interest expense 42.72 49.90
Operating cash flow before working capital changes {406.02) 32.53
Adjustments for working capital ehanges
Increase/[decrease) in financial lizbilities (including trade payables) 100.01 (394.38)
{Decrease) / increase in noa-financial liabilities 10.85 {34.00)
Decrease/ (increase} in fixed depasit including accrued interast {0.04) {000}
{Increase)/ decrease in derivative finandal instruments 27.81 1,181.42
{Increase)/ decrease in stock in trade (1,695.85) 2,74598
Increase in trade receivables (23.50} 74.19
Decrease in other financial assets 58.33 {63.32)
Ingrease in other non-financial assets {42.72) {24.32)
Cash {used in]/ generated from operations {1,972.13} 3,518.09
Incoma tax paid {2.23} [0.77}
Net cash {used in)/ generated from operating activities - A {1,974.36) 3,517.32
B Cash flow from investing activities
Purchase / Sale of Fixed Assets (37.72) .14
Loans and Advances given 944.21 -
Sale of Investment 6.77 -
Interest received 42.69 104.79
Net cash generated from investing activities - B 955.95 104.93
€ Cash flow from financing activities
Borrowings (other than debt securities) [refer Note 2} 1,554.78 (2,372.45)
Loans and Advances given . {944.12)
Proceeds from issue of Compulsarily convertible debentures 3,250.00 -
Proceeds from issue of Equity shares 386.25 -
Pzoceeds from issue of preference shares - 4,i33.12
Payment on redemption of preference share capital {4,133.13} {4,376.25)
Interest paid {33.00} [61.65)
Net cash generated from/ {used in) financing activities - C 1,024.90 {3.621.34)
Net {decrease] / increase in cash and cash equivalents (A+B+C) 6.49 .91
Cash and cash equivalents as at the beginning of the year 10.79 9.88
Cash and cash equivalents as at the end of the year [refer note 1) 17.28 10.79
Notes:
1 Cash and cash equivalents include the following:
Balances with banks:
In current accounts 17.28 10.79

2 Net figures have been reported on account of volume of transactions.

This is the Cash flow statement referred to in our report of even date.

For GMJ & Co.
Chartered Accountan
ICA} Firm Registrati

For and on behalff Board of Director,

Ne. 103429W

D\l\a uuava:?_ -

Haridas Bhat Piyu mria
Partner Director Executive Director
Membership No. 035070 DIN - 08050620 DIN - 08314424
/@l}j{/f’ = ——
Ritesh Jain Akash Soni
Chief Finencial Officer Company Secretary

Mumbai Mumbai
16 May 2023 16 May 2023




Edelcap Securities Limited
Statement of Changes in Equity
{Currency : Indign rupees in milliens)

{A} Equity share capital

As at As at’
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at the beginning of the year 3.00 3.00
Changes in equity share capital 386.25 -
Balance at the end of the year 389,25 3.00
{B} instruments entirely equity in nature- Compulsarily Convertible Debentures
Balance at the beginning of the year - -
Changes in Compuisorily convertible debentures 3,250.00 -
Balance at the end of the year 3,250.00 -
{C} Other Equity
Capital Redemption ESOP reserve| Retained earnings Teotal
Reserve
Balance at 31 March 2021 {Ind AS} - 361 512.81 516.42
ESOP reversal - - 2.18 2.18
Profit for the year - - 77.62 77.62
Other comprehensive income - - {0.14) {0.14])
Total comprehensive income for the year - - 77.48 77.48
Balance at 31 March 2022 {Ind AS) - 3.61 582.46 586.07
Transfer to Capital redemption reserve 100.00 - £100.00) -
ESOP reversal - - 0,30 0.30
Loss for the year - - {418.25) {418.25)
Other comprehensive income - . {0.57) {0.57)
Totaf comprehensive income for the year . - {(418.82} {418.82)
|Batance at 21 March 2023 {Ind AS) 100.00 3.61 73.84 1771.55

1 Capital redemption reserve:

As per Companies Act, 2013, capital redemption resesve is created when Company purchases its own shares out of free reserves or securities premium.
A sum equal to the nomiral value of the shares so purchased is transferred to capital redemption reserve. The reserve is utilised in accordance with the

previsions of section 69 of the Companies Act, 2013.

2 ESOP reserve:

Certain of the Company's employees have been granted options to acquire equity shares of the Ultimate Parent Company [Edelweiss Financial Services
Limited). This reserve represents the cost of these options based on their fair value at the grant dates as recoanised over the vesting peried of such
options, to the extent that the Ultimate Parent Company has not recovered such cost from the Company.

This is the Statement of Changes in Equity referred to in our report of even date.

For GMI & Co,
Chartered Accountant
ICAI Firm Registrati

%

Haridas Bhat
Partner
Membership No. 039070

Ne. 103429W

Mumbai )
16 May 2023

For and on hehalf of Board of Directors

Executive Director
DiN - 08050620

t‘« u/\qu\‘}..

Rituparfia Barman Roy  Piyush'Skamria

Executive Director
DIN - 08814424

Ritesh Jain Akash Soni

Chief Financial Officer Company Secretary
Mumbai
16 May 2023




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

1. Background

Edelcap Securities Limited (‘the Company’) domicifed in india was incorporated on 11-jan-
2008 as a public limited company.

Edelcap Securities Limited is a wholly owned subsidiary of Edelweiss Financial Services
Limited through Ecap Equities Limited (Formerly known as Edel Land Limited) and is engaged
in the business of broking and trading activity as a registered Trading Member on different
segments of National Stock Exchange & BSE Limited and also acts an Authorised Person on

MCX.

2. Basis of preparation of financial statements

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared in accordance with Indian
Accounting Standards {Ind AS) notified under the Companies {indian Accounting Standards}
Rules, 2015 (as amended from time to time). and the other relevant provisions of the
Companies Act, 2013 (‘the Act’) and rules thereunder. These financial statements have been
approved for issue by the board of Directors of the Company on 16 May 2023.

The Company’s financial statements have been prepared on a historical cost basis, except
for certain financial instruments such as financial asset measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income {FVTOCI} instruments, derivative financial instruments, fair value
through profit and loss account and other financial assets held for trading, which have been
measured at fair value. The Company’s financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees
(INR) and all values are rounded to the nearest millions, except when otherwise indicated.

3. Presentation of financial statements

The Company presents its balance sheet in order of liguidity in compliance with the Division
il of the Schedule Il to the Companies Act, 2013. An analysis regarding recovery or
settlement within 12 months after the reporting date (current) and more than 12 months
after the reparting date {non—current) is presented in Note 48,

Financial assets and financial liabilities are generally reported gross in the balance sheet.
They are only offset and reported net when, in addition to having an unconditional legally
enforceable right to offset the recognised amounts without being contingent on a future
event, the parties also intend to settle on a net basis in all of the following circumstances:

* The normal course of business
¢ Theeventofdefault = . = = OO PP
e The event of insolvency or bankruptcy of the company and or its counterparties




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4, Significant accounting policies

4.1 Revenue recognition

4.1.1 Fee income including advisory fees for services rendered is accounted over the period as the
customer simultaneously receives and consumes the benefits, as the services are rendered.

4.1.2 Interest income is recorded using the effective interest rate (EIR} method for all financial
instruments measured at amortised cost and debt instrument measured at FVOCI The EIR is
the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash receipts through the expected life of
the financial asset to the gross carrying amount of the financial asset.

The EIR {and therefore, the amortised cost of the financial asset) is calculated by taking into
account any discount or premium on acquisition, fees and costs that are an integral part of
the EIR. The Company recognises interest income using a rate of return that represents the
best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected life of the loan. Hence, it
recognises the effect of potentially different interest rates charged at various stages, and
other characteristics of the product life cycle (including prepayments, penalty interest and
charges).

If expectations regarding the cash flows on the financial asset are revised for reasons other
than credit risk. The adjustment is booked as a positive or negative adjustment to the
carrying amount of the asset in the balance sheet with an increase or reduction in interest
income.

When a financial asset becomes credit-impaired and is, therefore, regarded as ‘Stage 3, the
Company calculates interest income by applying the effective interest rate to the amortised
cost of the financial asset. If the financial assets cures and is no longer credit-impaired, the
Company reverts to calculating interest income on a gross basis.

For purchased or originated credit-impaired (POCI) financial assets, the Company calculates
interest income by calculating the credit-adjusted EIR and applying that rate to the
amortised cast of the asset, The credit-adjusted EIR is the interest rate that, at criginal
recognition, discounts the estimated future cash flows (including credit losses) to the
amortised cost of the POC! assets.

4.1.3 Dividend income is recognised in statement of profit and loss when the Company’s right to
receive payment of the dividend is established, it is probable that the economic benefits
associated with the dividend will flow to the entity, and the amount of the dividend can be

measured reliably.

4.1.4 Brokerage income is recognised as per contracted rates at the time of execution of
transactions on behalf of the customers on the trade date.

4'2 - Financiai 'nstruments e P

4.2.1 Date of recognition

Financial assets and financial liabilities, with the exception of borrowings are initially
recognised on the trade date, i.e., the date that the Company becomes a party to the
contractual provisions of the instrument. This includes regular way trades; purchases or
sales of financial assets that require delivery of assets within the time frame generally
established by regulation or convention in the market place. The Company recognises
borrowings when funds are available for utilisation to the Company.

MUMBAL

Frai No,




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

422

4,23

4.3
4.3.1

Initial measurement of financial instruments

Financial assets and financial liabilities are initially measured at fair value. Transaction costs
that are directly attributable to the acquisition or issue of financial assets and financial
liabilities (other than financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or
loss) are added to or deducted from the fair value of the financial assets or financial
liabilities, as appropriate, on initial recognition. Transaction costs directly attributable to the
acquisition of financial assets or financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss are
recognised immediately in statement of profit and loss.

Day 1 profit or loss

When the transaction price of the financial instrument differs from the fair value at
origination and the fair value is based on a valuation technique using only inputs observable
in market transactions, the Company recognises the difference between the transaction
price and fair value in net gain on fair value changes. In those cases where fair value is based
on models for which some of the inputs are not observable, the difference between the
transaction price and the fair value is deferred and is only recognised in statement of profit
and loss when the inputs become observable, or when the instrument is derecognised.

Classification of financial instruments
Financial assets:

The Company classifies all of its financial assets based on the business model for managing
the assets and the asset’s contractual terms, measured at either:

*  Amortised cost
*  Fair value through other comprehensive income [FVTOCI]

*  Fair value through profit or loss [FVTPL}
The Company measures debt financial assets that meet the following conditions at
amortised cost:

e the financial asset is held within a business model whose abjective is to hold financial
assets in order to collect contractual cash flows; and
s the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.
Sale that occur for below reason are considered as consistent with business model whose
objective is to hold financial assets in order to collect contractual cash flows

e if those sales are infrequent {even if significant in value) or insignificant in value both
individually and in aggregate (even if frequent).

s If such sales are made close to maturity of financial asset and proceeds from sale
approximate the collection of the remaining contractual cashfiow.

* Selling a financial asset because of significant increase in credit risk.

value through other comprehensive income (except for debt instruments that are
designated as at fair value through profit or 10ss on initial recognition): C

¢ the financial asset is held within a business model whose objective is achieved both by
collecting contractual cash flows and selling the financial assets; and

the contractual terms of the financial asset give rise on specified dates to cash flows
that are solely payments of principal and interest on the principal amount
outstanding.

if = £ MUMBA; Y
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Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes

to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023

43.1.1

43.1.2

43.13

43.1.4

43.2

4321

43.2.2

Other than above classification of amortised cost and FVOC, all other financial assets are
initially measured at fair value and subsequently measured at FVTPL.

Amortized cost and Effective interest rate method (EIR)

The amortised cost of a financial asset is the amount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus the principal repayments, plus the cumulative
amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial
amount and the maturity amount, adjusted for any loss allowance. On the other hand, the
gross carrying amount of a financial asset is the amortised cost of a financial asset before
adjusting for any loss allowance.

Financial assets held for trading

The Company classifies financial assets as held for trading when they have been purchased
or issued primarily for short-term profit making through trading activities or form part of a
portfolio of financial instruments that are managed together, for which there evidence of a
recent pattern of short-term profit is taking. Held-for-trading assets and liabilities are
recorded and measured in the balance sheet at fair value.

Financial asset measured at FVOCI

Unrealised gains or losses on debt instruments measured at FVOCI are recognised in other
comprehensive income, and on derecognition of such instrument accumulated gains or
losses are recycled to statement of profit and loss. Interest income on such instrument is
recognised in statement of profit and loss as per EIR method.

Investment in equity instruments

The Company subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value through profit or
foss, unless the management has elected to classify irrevocably some of its strategic equity
investments to be measured at FVTOC!, when such instruments meet the definition of Equity
under Ind AS and are not held for trading. Such classification is determined on an
instrument-by-instrument basis.

Financia! liabilities

All financial liabilities are measured at amortised cost except loan commitments, financial
guarantees, and derivative financial {iabilities.

Debt securities and other borrowed funds

After initial measurement, debt issued and other borrowed funds are subseguently
measured at amortised cost. Amortised cost is calculated by taking into account any
discount or premium on issue funds, and costs that are an integral part of the instrument.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at fair value through profit or loss

and have been either designhated by management upon initial recognition or are mandatorily

‘required to be measured at fair value under Ind AS 109. Management only designates an

instrument at FVTPL upon initial recognition when one of the following criteria are met.

Such designation is determined on an instrument-by-instrument basis:

e The designation eliminates, or significantly reduces, the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the assets or liabilities or recognising gains or
tosses on them on a different basis; or




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

43.23

4.3.24

433

4.3.4

e The liabilities are part of a group of financial liabilities, which are managed and their
performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a documented risk
management or investment strategy,; or

¢ The liabilities containing one or more embedded derivatives, unless they do not
significantly modify the cash flows that would otherwise be required by the contract, or
it is clear with little or no analysis when a similar instrument is first considered that
separation of the embedded derivative(s) is prohibited.

Financial assets and financial liabilities at FVTPL are recorded in the balance sheet at fair
value. Changes in fair value are recorded in statement of profit and loss with the exception
of movements in fair value of liabilities designated at FVTPL due to changes in the
Company’s own credit risk. Such changes in fair value are recorded in the own credit reserve
through OC! and do not get recycled to the profit or loss. Interest earned or incurred on
instruments designated at FVTPL is accrued in interest income or finance cost, respectively,
using the EIR, taking into account any discount/ premium and qualifying transaction costs
being an integral part of instrument. Interest earned on assets mandatorily required to be
measured at FVTPL is recorded using contractual interest rate,

Financial guarantee:

Financial guarantees are contracts that require the Company to make specified payments to
reimburse to holder for loss that it incurs because a specified debtor fails to make payment
when it is due in accordance with the terms of a debt instrument.

Financial guarantee issued or commitments to provide a loan at below market interest rate
are initially measured at fair value and the initial fair value is amortised over the life of the
guarantee or the commitment. Subsequently they are measured at higher of this amortised
amount and the amount of loss allowance.

Loan commitment

Undrawn loan commitments are commitments under which, the Company is required to
provide a loan with pre-specified terms to the customer during the duration of commitment.
Financial liabilities and equity instruments

Financial instruments issued by the Company are classified as either financial liabilities or as
equity in accordance with the substance of the contractual arrangements and the definitions
of a financial liability and an equity instrument.

An equity instrument is any contract that evidences a residual interest in the assets of an
entity after deducting all of its liabilities. Equity instruments issued by the Company are
recognised at the proceeds received.

Derivatives

_The Company enters into a variety of derivative financial instruments to manage its
exposure to interest rate and foreign exchange rate risks, including foreign exchange

forward contracts and interest rate swaps.

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value and are subsequently re-measured at fair
value through profit or loss. The resulting gain or loss is recognised in statement of profit
and loss immediately.




Edelc
Notes

ap Securities Limited
to the financial statements

for the year ended 31 March 2023

4.4

4.5
45.1

4.5.2

Reclassification of financial assets and liabilities

The Company does not reclassify its financial assets subsequent to their initial recognition,
apart from the exceptional circumstances in which the Company acquires, disposes of, or
terminates a business line. Financial liabilities are never reclassified.

Derecognition of financial assets and financial liabilities

Derecoghition of financial assets due to substantia! modification of terms and conditions

The Company derecognises a financial asset, such as a loan to a customer, when the terms
and conditions have been renegotiated to the extent that, substantially, it becomes a new
loan, with the difference recognised as a derecognition gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded. The newly recognised financial asset are
classified as Stage 1 for ECL measurement purposes, unless the new financial asset is
deemed to be POCL
When assessing whether or not to derecognise a financial assets, amongst others, the
Company considers the following factors:

¢ Change in currency of the loan

¢ ntroduction of an equity feature

¢ Change in counterparty

If the modification does not result in cash flows that are substantially different, the
modification does not result in derecognition. Based on the change in cash flows discounted
at the originat EIR, the Company records a modification gain or loss, to the extent that an
impairment loss has not already been recorded.

Derecognition of financial assets other than due to substantial modification

A financial asset {or, where applicable, a part of a financial asset or part of a group of simifar
financial assets) is derecognised when the rights to receive cash flows from the financial
asset have expired. The Company also derecognises the financial asset if it has both
transferred the financial asset and the transfer guatlifies for derecognition.

The Company has transferred the financial asset i, and only if, either:

e The Company has transferred its contractual rights to receive cash flows from the
financial asset; or

s Ht retains the rights to the cash flows, but has assumed an obligation to pay the received
cash flows in full without material delay to a third party under a ‘pass—through’

arrangement.
Pass-through arrangements are transactions whereby the Company retains the contractual

rights to receive the cash flows of a financial asset {the ‘original asset’), but assumes a
contractual obligation to pay those cash flows to one_or. more._ entities {the ‘eventual

“recipients’), when all of the following conditions are met:

* ‘The Company has no obligation to pay amounts to the eventual recipients uniess it has
collected equivalent amounts from the original asset, excluding short-term advances with
the right to full recovery of the amount lent plus accrued interest at market rates

s The Company cannot sell or pledge the original asset other than as security to the
eventual recipients




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4.5.3

The Company has to remit any cash flows it collects on behalf of the eventual recipients
without material delay. In addition, the Company is not entitled to reinvest such cash flows,
except for investments in cash or cash equivalents including interest earned, during the
period between the collection date and the date of required remittance to the eventual
recipients.

A transfer qualifies for derecognition if either:

s The Company has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset; or

e The Company has neither transferred nor retained substantially ali the risks and rewards
of the asset, but has transferred control of the asset

The Company considers control to be transferred if and only if, the transferee has the

practical ability to sell the asset in its entirety to an unrelated third party and is able to

exercise that ability unilaterally and without imposing additional restrictions on the transfer.

Derecognition of financial liabilities
A financial liability is derecognised when the obligation under the liability is discharged,
cancelled or expires.

Where an existing financial liability is replaced by another from the same lender on
substantially different terms, or the terms of an existing liability are substantially modified,
such an exchange or modification is treated as a derecognition of the original liability and
the recognition of a new liability. The difference between the carrying value of the financial
liability and the consideration paid, including modified contractual cash flow recognised as
new financial liability, is recognised in the statement of profit and loss.




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements
for the year ended 31 March 2023

4.6

Impairment of financial assets

The Company records allowance for expected credit losses for all loans, other debt financial
assets not held at FVTPL, together with loan commitment and financial guarantee contracts,
in this section all referred to as ‘financial instruments’. Equity instruments are not subject to
impairment.

The Company follows ‘simplified approach’ for recognition of impairment loss allowance on
trade receivables and lease receivables. The application of simplified approach does not
require the Company to track changes in credit risk. Rather, it recognises impairment loss
allowance bhased on lifetime ECLs at each reporting date, right from its initial recognition.
The Company uses a provision matrix to determine impairment loss allowance on portfolio
of its receivables. The provision matrix is based on its historically observed default rates over
the expected life of the receivables. However, if receivables contain a significant financing
component, the Company chooses as its accounting policy to measure the loss allowance by
applying general approach to measure ECL.

For all other financial instruments, the Company recognises lifetime ECL when there has
been a significant increase in credit risk (SICR) since initial recognition. If, on the other hand,
the credit risk on the financial instrument has not increased significantly since initial
recognition, the Company measures the loss allowance for that financial instrument at an
amount equal to 12-month expected credit losses (12m ECL). The assessment of whether
lifetime ECL should be recognised is based on significant increases in the likelihood or risk of
a default occurring since initial recognition instead of on evidence of a financial asset being
credit-impaired at the reporting date or an actual default oceurring.

Lifetime ECL represents the expected credit losses that will result from all possible default
events over the expected life of a financial instrument. In contrast, 12m ECL represents the
portion of lifetime ECL that is expected to result from default events on a financial
instrument that are possible within 12 months after the reporting date.

The measurement of expected credit losses is a function of the probability of default, loss
given default (i.e. the magnitude of the loss if there is a default) and the exposure at default.
The assessment of the probability of default and loss given default is based on historical data
adjusted by forward-looking information. As for the exposure at default (EAD), for financial
assets, this is represented by the assets’ gross carrying amount at the reporting date; for
loan commitments and financial guarantee contracts, the exposure includes the amount
drawn down as at the reporting date, together with any additional amounts expected to be
drawn down in the future by default date determined based on historical trend, the
Company’s understanding of the specific future financing needs of the debtors, and other
relevant forward-looking information.

For financial assets, the ECL is estimated as the difference between all contractuat cash flows
that are due to the Company in accordance with the contract and all the cash flows that the
Company expects to receive, discounted at the original effective interest rate. The Company
recognises an impairment gain or loss in profit or loss for all financial instruments with a
corresponding adjustment to their carrying amount through a loss allowance account.

—If -a-financial - instrument includes. both & loan (i.e. financial asset) and. an undrawn ..

commitment (i.e. loan commitment} component and the Company cannot separately
identify the ECL on the loan commitment component from those on the financial asset

' component, the ECL on the loan commitment have been recognised together with the loss

allowance for the financial asset. To the extent that the combined ECL exceed the gross
carrying amount of the financial asset, the ECL have been recognised as a provision. Also, for
other loan commitments and all financial guarantee contracts, the loss allowance has been
recognised as a provision.
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4.7

4.8

4.9

4.10

Collateral valuation

To mitigate its credit risks on financial assets, the Company seeks to use collateral, where
possible. The collateral comes in various forms, such as cash, securities, letters of
credit/guarantees, real estate, receivables, inventories, other non-financial assets and credit
enhancements such as netting agreements. Collateral, unless repossessed, is not recorded
on the balance sheet, However, the fair value of coliateral affects the calculation of ECLs. It
is generally assessed, at a minimum, at inception and re-assessed on a periodical basis.
However, some collateral, for example, cash or securities relating to margining
requirements, is valued daily.

To the extent possible, the Company uses active market data for valuing financial assets held
as collateral. Other financial assets which do not have readily determinable market values
are valued using models.

Collateral repossessed

The Company’s policy is to determine whether a repossessed asset can be best used for its
internal operations or should be sold. Assets determined to be useful for the internal
operations are transferred to their relevant asset category at the lower of their repossessed
value or the carrying value of the original secured asset. Assets for which selling is
determined to be a better option are transferred to assets held for sale at their fair value (if
financial assets) and fair value less cost 1o sell for non-financial assets at the repossession
date in, line with the Company’s policy.

In its normal course of business, the Company does not physically repossess properties or
other assets in its retail portfolio, but engages external agents to recover funds, generally at
auction, to settle outstanding debt. Any surplus funds are returned to the
customers/obligors.

Write off

Financial assets are written off either partially or in their entirety only when the Company
has no reasonable expectation of recovery.

Forborne and modified loan

The Company sometimes makes concessions or modifications to the original terms of loans
as a response to the borrower’s financial difficulties, rather than taking possession or to
otherwise enforce collection of collateral. The Company considers a loan forborne when
such concessions or modifications are provided as a result of the borrower’s present or
expected financial difficulties and the Company would not have agreed to them if the
borrower had been financially healthy. Indicators of financial difficulties include defaults on
covenants, or significant concerns raised by the Credit Risk Department. Forbearance may
involve extending the payment arrangements and the agreement of new loan conditions.

Once the terms have been renegotiated, any impairment is measured using the original EIR

as calculated before the modification of terms. It is the Company’s policy to monitor’
forborne loans to help ensure that future payments continue to be likely to occur.
Derecognition decisions and classification between Stage 2 and Stage 3 are determined on a
case-by-case basis. If these procedures identify a loss in refation to a loan, it is disclosed and
managed as an impaired Stage 3 forborne asset, until it is collected or written off.
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4.11

Determination of fair value

The Company measures financial instruments, such as, derivatives at fair value at each
balance sheet date. Fair value is the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date. The fair value measurement is based on the presumption that the
transaction to sell the asset or transfer the liability takes place efther:

* Inthe principal market for the asset or liability, or
* |n the absence of a principal market, in the most advantageous market for the asset or
liability.

The principal or the most advantageous market must be accessible by the Company.
The fair value of an asset or a liability is measured using the assumptions that market
participants would use when pricing the asset or liability, assuming that market participants
act in their economic best interest, A fair value measurement of a non-financial asset takes
into account a market participant’s ability to generate economic benefits by using the asset
in its highest and best use or by selling it to another market participant that would use the
asset in its highest and best use. The Company uses valuation techniques that are
appropriate in the circumstances and for which sufficient data are available to measure fair
value, maximising the use of relevant observable inputs and minimising the use of
unobservable inputs. In order to show how fair values have been derived, financial
instruments are classified based on a hierarchy of valuation techniques, as summarised
below:

* Level 1 financial instruments ~Those where the inputs used in the valuation are
unadjusted quoted prices from active markets for identical assets or liabilities that the
Company has access at the measurement date. The Company considers markets as
active only if there are sufficient trading activities with regards to the volume and
liquidity of the identical assets or liabilities and when there are binding and exercisable
price quotes available on the balance sheet date.

* Level 2 financial instruments-Those where the inputs that are used for valuation and
are significant, are derived from directly or indirectly observable market data available
over the entire period of the instrument’s life.

+  Leve!l 3 financial instruments -Those that include one or more unobservable input that
is significant to the measurement as whole. For assets and liabilities that are
recognised in the financial statements on a recurring basis, the Company determines
whether transfers have occurred between levels in the hierarchy by re-assessing
categorization (based on the lowest level input that is significant to the fair value
measurement as a whole) at the end of each reporting period. The Company
periodically reviews its valuation techniques including the adopted methodologies and

model calibrations.

Therefore, the Company applies various technigues to estimate the credit risk associated

~ with its financial instruments measured at fair value, which include a portfolio-based
‘approach that estimates the expected net exposure per counterparty over the full lifetime of -

the individual assets, in order to reflect the credit risk of the individual counterparties for
non-collateralised financial instruments,

The Company evaluates the levelling at each reporting period on an instrument-by-
instrument basis and reclassifies instruments when necessary based on the facts at the end

of the reporting period. _
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4.12  Earnings per share
Basic earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the
equity shareholders for the year by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding for the year.

Diluted earnings per share reflect the potential dilution that could occur if securities or other
contracts to issue equity shares were exercised or converted during the year. Diluted
earnings per share is computed by dividing the net profit after tax attributable to the equity
shareholders for the year by weighted average number of equity shares considered for
deriving basic earnings per share and weighted average number of equity shares that could
have heen issued upon conversion of all potential equity shares.

4.13  Foreign currency transactions

The financial statements are presented in Indian Rupees. Transactions in currencies other
than Indian Rupees (i.e. foreign currencies) are recognised at the rates of exchange
prevailing at the dates of the transactions. At the end of each reporting period, monetary
items denominated in foreign currencies are retranstated at the rates prevailing at that date.
Non-monetary items carried at fair value that are denominated in foreign currencies are
retransiated at the rates prevailing at the date when the fair value was determined. Non-
monetary iterns that are measured in terms of historical cost in a foreign currency are not
translated.

Exchange differences on monetary items are recognised in statement of profit and loss in
the period in which they arise.

4.14 Retirement and other employee benefit
4.14.1 Provident fund and national pension scheme

The Company contributes to a recognised provident fund and national pension scheme
which is a defined contribution scheme, The contributions are accounted for on an accrual
basis and recognised in the statement of profit and loss.

4.14.2 Gratuity
The Company’s gratuity scheme is a defined benefit plan. The Company’s net obligation in
respect of the gratuity benefit scheme is calculated by estimating the amount of future
benefit that the employees have earned in return for their service in the current and prior
periods, that benefit is discounted to determine its present value, and the fair value of any
plan assets, if any, is deducted. The present value of the obligation under such benefit plan
is determined based on independent actuarial valuation using the Projected Unit Credit
Method.
Remeasurements, comprising of actuarial gains and losses, the effect of the asset ceiling,
excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit liability and the return
“on plan assets {excluding amounts included in net interest on the net defined benefit -
liability), are recognised immediately in the balance sheet with a corresponding debit or -
credit to retained earnings through OCl in the period in which they occur.
Remeasurements are not reclassified to statement of profit and loss in subsequent penods

Compensated Absences

The eligible employees of the Company are permitted to carry forward certain number of
their annual leave entitlement to subsequent years, subject to a ceiling. The Company
recognises the charge in the statement of profit and loss and corresponding liability on such
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4.14.4

4.15

The cost of providing annual leave benefits is determined using the projected unit credit
method.

Share-based payment arrangements

Equity-settled share-based payments to employees and others providing similar services
that are granted by the ultimate parent Company are measured by reference to the fair
value of the equity instruments at the grant date.

The fair value determined at the grant date of the equity-settled share-based payments is
expensed over the vesting period, based on the Company’s estimate of equity instruments
that will eventually vest, with a corresponding increase in equity. At the end of each
reporting period, the Company revises its estimate of the number of equity instruments
expected to vest. The impact of the revision of the original estimates, if any, is recognised in
statement of profit and loss such that the cumulative expense reflects the revised estimate,
with a corresponding adjustment to the 'ESOP reserve’. In cases where the share options
granted vest in instalments over the vesting period, the Company treats each instalmentas a
separate grant, because each instalment has a different vesting period, and hence the fair
value of each instalment differs.

Property, plant and equipment

Property plant and equipment is stated at cost excluding the costs of day-to-day servicing,
less accumulated depreciation and accumulated impairment in value. Changes in the
expected useful life are accounted for by changing the amortisation period or methodology,
as appropriate, and treated as changes in accounting estimates.

Subsequent costs incurred on an item of property, plant and equipment is recognised in the
carrying amount thereof when those costs meet the recognition criteria as mentioned
above. Repairs and maintenance are recognised in profit or loss as incurred.

Depreciation is recognised so as to write off the cost of assets {other than freehold land and
properties under construction) less their residual values over their useful lives. Depreciation
is provided on a written down value basis from the date the asset is ready for its intended
use or put to use whichever is earlier. In respect of assets sold, depreciation is provided upto
the date of disposal.

For transition to Ind AS, the Company has elected to continue with the carrying value of all
of its tangible assets recognised as of 1 April 2017 (transition date) measured as per the
previous GAAP and use that carrying value as its deemed cost as of the transition date.

As per the requirement of Schedule Il of the Companies Act, 2013, the Company has
evaluated the useful lives of the respective fixed assets which are as per the provisions of
Part C of the Schedule Il for calculating the depreciation. The estimated useful lives of the
fixed assets are as follows:

Motor vehicles o T ' C : o Byears

Office equipments 5 years

)Computers and data processing units - Servers and networks 6 years

fComputers and data processing units - End user devices, such as 3vyears
desktops, laptops, etc.
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4.16

4.17

4.18

4.19

Leasehold improvements are amortized on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful
lives of the assets or the period of lease whichever is shorter,

Intangible assets

The Company’s intangible assets mainly include the value of computer software. An
intangible asset is recognised only when its cost can be measured reliably and it is probable
that the expected future economic benefits that are attributable to it will flow to the

Company.

Intangible assets acquired separately are measured on initial recognition at cost. The cost of
intangible assets acquired in a business combination is their fair value as at the date of
acquisition. Following initial recognition, intangible assets are carried at cost less any
accumulated amortisation and any accumulated impairment losses. Intangible assets with
finite lives are amortised over the useful economic life,

Impairment of non-financial assets

The Company assesses at each balance sheet date whether there is any indication that an
asset may be impaired based on internal/external factors. If any such indication exists, the
Company estimates the recoverable amount of the asset. If such recoverable amount of the
asset or the recoverable amount of cash generating unit which the asset belongs to is less
than its carrying amount, the carrying amount is reduced to its recoverable amount. The
reduction is treated as an impairment loss and is recognized in the statement of profit and
loss. If at the balance sheet date there is an indication that a previously assessed impairment
loss no longer exists, the recoverable amount is reassessed and the asset is reflected at the
recoverable amount subject to a maximum of the depreciable historical cost.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalent in the balance sheet comprise cash at banks and on hand and
short-term deposits with an original maturity of three months or less.

Provisions and Contingent liabilities

Provisions are recognised when the Company has a present obligation (legal or constructive)
as a result of a past event, it is probable that the Company will be required to settle the
obligation, and a reliable estimate can be made of the amount of the obligation. If the effect
of the time value of money is material, provisions are determined by discounting the
expected future cash flows to net present value using an appropriate pre-tax discount rate
that reflects current market assessments of the time value of money and, where
appropriate, the risks specific to the liability.

A present obligation that arises from past events, where it is either not probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle or a reliable estimate of the amount cannot
be made, is disclosed as a contingent liability. Contingent liabilities are also disclosed when

~there is-a possible obligation arising from. past events, the existence of which will be.

confirmed only by the occurrence or non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events
not wholly within the control of the Company. Claims against the Company, where the
possibility of any outflow of resources in settlement is remote, are not disclosed as
contingent liabilities.

Contingent assets are not recognised in the financial statements since this may result in the
recognition of income that may never be realised. However, when the realisation of income
is virtually certain, then the related asset is not a contingent asset and is recognised.
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4.20

4.20.1

4.20.2

' The msasiurement of deferred tax liabilities and assets reflects the tax 'C'OHSE'QUEH'CES'th'at"' Come

Income tax expenses

Income tax expense represents the sum of the tax currently payable and deferred tax (net).

Current tax

The tax currently payable is based on taxable profit for the year. Taxable profit differs from
‘profit before tax’ as reported in the statement of profit and loss because of items of income
or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and items that are never taxable or
deductible. The Company’s current tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted
or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

Deferred tax

Deferred tax is recognised on temporary differences between the carrying amounts of assets
and liabilities in the financial statements and the corresponding tax bases used in the
computation of taxable profit. Deferred tax liabilities are generally recognised for all taxable
temporary differences. Deferred tax assets are generally recognised for all deductible
temporary differences to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits will be available
against which those deductible temporary differences can be utilised.

Deferred tax assets are also recognised with respect to carry forward of unused tax losses
and unused tax credits to the extent that it is probable that future taxable profit will be
available against which the unused tax losses and unused tax credits can be utilised.

It is probable that taxable profit will be available against which a deductible temporary
difference, unused tax loss or unused tax credit can be utilised when there are sufficient
taxable temporary differences which are expected to reverse in the period of reversal of
deductible temporary difference or in periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or
hack. When this is not the case, deferred tax asset is recognised to the extent it is probable
that:

s the entity will have sufficient taxable profit in the same period as reversal of deductible
temporary difference or periods in which a tax loss can be carried forward or back; or

e tax planning opportunities are available that will create taxable profit in appropriate
periods.

The carrying amount of deferred tax assets is reviewed at the end of each reporting period
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered.

Deferred tax liabilities and assets are measured at the tax rates that are expected to apply in
the period in which the liability is settled or the asset realised, based on tax rates (and tax
laws) that have been enacted or substantively enacted by the end of the reporting period.

would follow from the manner-in-which-the Company expects,-at the end. of the reporting

- period, to recover or settle the carrying amount of its assets and liabilities.

Current and deferred tax are recognised in profit or loss, except when they relate to items
that are recognised in other comprehensive income or directly in equity, in which case, the
current and deferred tax are also recognised in other compr sive income or directly in
equity respectively.
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4.20.3 Minimum Alternative Tax (MAT) credit

5.1

MAT paid in a year is charged to the statement of profit and loss as current tax. The
Company recognizes unused MAT credit as a deferred tax asset only to the extent that it is
probabie that the Company will be able to utilise during the specified period, i.e., the period
for which MAT credit is allowed to be carried forward. in the year in which the Company
recognises deferred tax asset (MAT credit) as an asset, the said asset is created by way of
credit to the statement of profit and loss. The Company reviews the MAT asset at each
reporting date and writes down the asset to the extent that it is not probable that the
Company will be able to utilise it during the specified period.

Critical accounting judgements and key sources of estimation uncertainty

In the application of the Company’s accounting policies, the management is required to
make judgments’, estimates and assumptions about the carrying amounts of assets and
liabilities that are not readily apparent from other sources. The estimates and associated
assumptions are based on historical experience and other factors that are considered to be
relevant. Actual results may differ from these estimates.

The estimates and underlying assumptions are reviewed on an ongoing basis. Revisions to
accounting estimates are recognised in the period in which the estimate is revised if the
revision affects only that period, or in the period of the revision and future periods if the

revision affects both current and future periods.
Critical judgements in applying accounting policies

The following are the critical judgements, apart from those involving estimations, that the
management has made in the process of applying the Company's accounting policies and
that have the most significant effect on the amounts recognised in the consolidated financial
statements,

a. Business model assessment

Classification and measurement of financial assets depends on the results of the solely
payments of principal and interest {SPPI) and the business model test. The Company
determines the business model at a tevel that reflects how groups of financial assets are
managed together to achieve a particular business objective. This assessment includes
judgement reflecting all relevant evidence including how the performance of the assets is
evaluated and their performance is measured, the risks that affect the performance of the
assets and how these are managed and how the managers of the assets are compensated.

“The Company monitors financial assets measured at amortised cost that are derecognised
-prior-to-their-maturity -to-understand -the -quantum;- the-reason- for-their-disposal -and

whether the reascns are consistent with the objective of the business for which the asset
was held. Monitoring is part of the Company’s continuous assessment of whether the
business model! for which the remaining financial assets are held continues to be appropriate
and if it is not appropriate whether there has been a change in business model and so a
prospective change to the classification of those assets.
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b. Significant increase in credit risk

ECL is measured as an allowance equal to 12-month ECL for stage 1 assets, or lifetime ECL for
stage 2 or stage 3 assets. An asset moves to stage 2 when its credit risk has increased
significantly since initial recognition. In assessing whether the credit risk of an asset has
significantly increased the Company takes into account qualitative and quantitative
reasonable and supportable forward-looking information.

¢. Consolidation of structured entities

A structured entity is an entity that has been designed so that voting or similar rights are not
the dominant factor in deciding who controls the entity, such as when any voting rights
relate to administrative tasks only and the relevant activities are directed by means of
contractual arrangements. In the context of the Company, structured entities comprise
securitisation trusts in asset reconstruction business, mutual fund schemes and alternative
investment funds / schemes thereof. The Company consolidates the structured entities that
it controls. When making this judgement, the Company also considers voting and similar
rights available to itself and other parties, who may limit the Company’s ability to control,
including rights to appoint, reassign or remove members of the structured entity’s key
management personnel who have the ability to direct the relevant activities, the exposure to
variability of returns and whether the Company has the ability to use its power to affect the
amount of the Company’s returns i.e. the variability of returns in relation to the total returns
of the investee entity.

5.2 Key sources of estimation uncertainty

The following are the key assumptions concerning the future, and other key sources of
estimation uncertainty at the end of the reporting period that may have a significant risk of
causing a material adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the
next financiat year, as described below. The Company based its assumptions and estimates
on parameters available when the stand-alone financial statements are prepared. Existing
circumstances and assumptions about future developments, however, may change due to
market changes or circumstances arising that are beyond the control of the Company. Such
changes are reflected in the assumptions when they occur.

a. Fair value of financial instruments

The fair value of financial instruments is the price that would be received to sell an asset or

paid to transfer a liability in an orderly transaction in the principal (or most advantageous)

market at the measurement date under current market conditions (i.e.,, an exit price)

regardless of whether that price is directly observable or estimated using another valuation
. technique..When the fair values of financial assets and.financial.liabilities recorded .in.the. ... ...
. balance sheet cannot be derived from active markets, they are determined using a variety of

valuation techniques that include the use of valuation models. The inputs to these models
are taken from observable markets where possible, but where this is not feasible, estimation
is required in establishing fair values.

For Investments made into Security receipts (SRs), Company uses discounted cash flow
model, given that the SRs are less liquid instruments. Expected cash flow levels including

timing of cash flows are estimated by using quantitative and qualitative measures regarding
ture and value of
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collaterals, manner of resolution and other economic drivers. For any valuation which are
based on models, Judgements and estimates are applied, which include considerations of
liquidity, credit risk (both own and counterparty}, funding value adjustments, correlation and
volatility.

b. Impairment of financial assets

The measurement of impairment losses across all categories of financial assets requires
judgement, in particular, the estimation of the amount and timing of future cash flows and
colfateral values when determining impairment losses and the assessment of a significant
increase in credit risk. These estimates are driven by a number of factors, changes in which
can result in different levels of allowances.

The Company’s ECL calculations are outputs of models with a number of underlying
assumptions regarding the choice of variable inputs and their interdependencies. Elements of
the ECL models that are considered accounting judgements and estimates include:

s PD calculation includes historical data, assumptions and expectations of future
conditions,

* The Company’s criteria for assessing if there has been a significant increase in credit risk
and so allowances for financial assets should be measured on a life-time expected credit
foss and the qualitative assessment.

» The segmentation of financial assets when their ECL is assessed on a collective basis.

» Development of ECL models, including the various formulas and the choice of inputs.

« Determination of associations between macroeconomic scenarios and, economic inputs,
such as unemployment levels and collateral values, and the effect on PDs, EAD and LGD.

s Selection of forward-looking macroeconomic scenarios and their probability weightings,
to derive the economic inputs into the ECL models.

It is Company’s policy to regularly review its models in the context of actual loss experience
and adjust when necessary.

c. Effective interest rate method

The Company’s EIR methodology recognises interest income / expense using a rate of return
that represents the best estimate of a constant rate of return over the expected behavioural
life of loans given / taken and recognises the effect of characteristics of the product life cycle

This estimation, by nature, requires an element of judgement regarding the expected

_behaviour and life-cycle of the instruments, as well expected changes fee income/expense

that are integral parts of the instrument.

d. Accounting for deferred taxes

Deferred tax assets are recognised for unused tax losses to the extent that it is probable that
taxable profit will be available against which the losses can be utilised. Significant
management judgement is required to determine the amount of deferred tax assets that
can be recognised, based upon the likely timing and the level of future taxable profits
together with future tax planning strategies.
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' Consequent;aE amendments have been made in Ind AS 101.

The Company has recognised deferred tax assets on carried forward tax losses where the
Company believes that the said deferred tax assets shall be recoverable based on the
estimated future taxable income which in turn is based on approved business plans and
budgets. The losses are allowed to be carried forward to the years in which the Company
expects that there will be sufficient taxable profits to offset these losses.

Standards issued but not yet effective

The Ministry of Corporate Affairs {(MCA) has notified Companies (Indian Accounting
Standards) Amendment Rules, 2023 dated 31 March 2023 to to amend the following Ind AS
which are effective from 01 April 2023.

(i} Amendment to Ind AS 8 - Definition of Accounting Estimates

The amendments clarify the distinction between changes in accounting estimates and
changes in accounting policies and the correction of errors. It has also been clarified how
entities use measurement technigues and inputs to develop accounting estimates.

The amendments are effective for annual reporting periods beginning on or after 1 April
2023 and apply to changes in accounting policies and changes in accounting estimates that
occur on or after the start of that period.

The amendments are not expected to have a material impact on the Company financial
statements.

(ii) Amendment to Ind AS 1- Disclosure of Accounting Policies

The amendments aim to help entities provide accounting pelicy disclosures that are more
useful by replacing the requirement for entities to disclose their ‘significant’ accounting
policies with a requirement to disclose their ‘material’ accounting policies and adding
guidance on how entities apply the concept of materiality in making decisions about
accounting policy disclosures.

Consequential amendments have been made in ind AS 107.

The Company is currently revisiting their accounting policy information disclosures to ensure
consistency with the amended requirements.

{iii) Amendment to Ind AS 12 - Deferred Tax related to Assets and Liabilities arising from a
Single Transaction

The amendments narrow the scope of the initial recognition exception under Ind AS 12, so
that it no longer applies to transactions that give rise to equal taxable and deductible
temporary differences.

The amendments should be applied to transactions that occur on or after the beginning of
the earliest comparative period presented. In addition, at the beginning of the earliest
comparative period presented, a deferred tax asset {provided that sufficient taxable profit is

avazlable) and a deferred tax hab;hty shouEd also be recognased for ali deductlbie and taxabie

The amendments to ind AS 12 are apphcabie for annual perfods begmmng on or after 1 April

2023.

The Company is currently assessing the impact of the amendments.
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{Currency : Indian rupees in miliions}

7 €ash and cash equivalents
Cheques, drafts on hand
Balances with banks
-in current accounts

&  Bank balances other than cash and cash equivalents
Fixed deposits, held as margin money
Accrued interest on fixed deposits

8.1 Encumbrances’ on fixed deposits held by the Company

Asat
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

17.28 10.79
17.28 10.79
7.18 7.18
0.18 0.14
7.36 7.32

The Company has pledged fixed deposits aggregating to Rs. 7.18 mifflons with National Stock exchange for meeting

margin requirements (Previous year: Rs. 7.18 millions).
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{Currency : indian rupees in mitlions}

]

Devivative firancial instruments

The table below shows tha fair values of derivative firantial instruments recorded as assets or fiabilities together with their sotional amounts.

31 March 2023
Notional Hotoral Fair value of Notionat T o Falr valug of
otional amount otionat amoun
i i Hability (E
particulars Unit . assat {INR) Unit . ability {ENR)
(i) Currency derivatives
-Currency Futures Number of currency units 250,000 0.03 {Number of curtency units
Less: amounts offset [refer Note in
offsetting disclosure) {250,000} {0.03)
Sub total (f) T N -
i) Interest rate derivatives
-Futures Mumber of units - Mumber of units 16,220,000 142
Less: amounts offset {refer Note in
offsetting disdosure] - {16,220,000} {1.42)
Subitotal {it) - B B
(iil) Equity linked derivatives
-Stock Futures Number of shares 1,243,820 7.98 | Number of shares 1,245,717 8.09
-Options purchased Number of shares 2,376,300 1.53 i Number of shares 3,209,700 16.77
-Options sold (written) Nember of shares
«Cthers [text} ftext}
Less: amounts offset (refer Note in
offsetting disclosure) §1,243.8200 (7.98} (1,245717} (8.0%}
Subrotat {iii) 2,376,300 :.53 3,203,700 16.77
(i) Index linked derivatives
-ndex Futures Number of index units 17,375 8.83 | Number of index units - -
-Cptians purchased Number of index units 96,020 25.24 | Nurmnber of index units 73,700 5.35
Less: amounts offset frefer Note in
offsetling disdosure] (17,375} (8.83) - -
Subtotal {iil} 96,020 25.24 73,700 5.35
Total derivative finansial instruments. 2,472,320 26.78 3,283,400 2.1
* Notional amount represents quantity in case of equity linked and index linked derivatives
31 March 2022
Notional Notlonat
N Notionafamaunt | Fair value of asset N MNotional amount | Fairvalue of liabifity
Unit Unit

Particulars . .
(i) Currancy derivatives
-Currancy Futures Mumber of currency units 19,000,000 2168 |Number of curfency units 4,565,000 313
- Options sold (written} Number of currency units - - Number of currency units - -
Less: amounts offset {refer Note in

disdesure) [21.68) (3.13)
Sulbr tatal {i) - "
(i} interest rate derivativas
-Fulures Number of units 24,596,000 1.23 | Mumber of shares -
Less: amounts offset (refer Note in
otisetting disclosure) {3230
Subtetal (ili) - -
(it} index linked dervatives
-Index Futures Number of index units - - Number of index units 4,300 0.18
-Options purchased Number of index enits 539,250 32.47 | Number of index units 273,300 2N
Lass: amounts offset [refer Note in
offsetting dischosure) - (32.89}
Subtotal {5} 32.47 N
Total derivative financial instruments n.a7

* Notional amount represents quanlity in case of equity inked and index linkad derivatives




Edelcap Securities Limited

Nates to the financlat statements {Continued}

{Currency : indian rupess in millions)

g

Derivatives Offsetting

Financlal assets subject to offsetting, netting arrangements

At 31 March 2023

Offsetting recognised in bafance sheet

Total assets

Particulars

Gross asset before

offset

Amount offset®

Recognised inthe
b

Derivative financial assets

43.61

16.83

25.78

* As at the reporting date 31-Mar-2023 the amount of ¢
assets is Rs.16.83 millions

ash margin received that has been offset against

the gross derivative

At 31 March 2022

Particulars

Gross asset bafore

Offsetting recognised in balance sheet

Total assets

Amount offsat*

Recognised in the

Derivative financial assets

55.37

2291

32.47

* As at the reporting date 31-Mar-2022 the amount of cash margin received that has been offset against the gross derivative

assets is Rs5.22.91 millions

At 31 March 2023

Particulars

Gross asset before
offsel

Gffsetting recognised in balance sheet

Total flabilities

Amount offset*®

Recognised in the

31.62

Derivative financial liabilities

9.51

2212

* As at the reporting date 31-Mar-2023, the amount of cash margin received that has been offset against

Hability is Rs.9.51 millions.

the gross derivative

At 31 March 2022

Offsetting recognised in balance sheet

Total liabilities

Particulars

Grass asset hefore
effset

Amount offset®

Recognised in the

balance sheet |

36.02

Derivative financial Rabilities

16.02

* As at the reporting date 31-Mar-2022, the amount of cash margin received that has been offset against the gross derivative
liahility is Rs.36.02 millions




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Cantinued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

10 Stock in trade
At fair value through profit & Loss

Asat As at
21 March 2023 31 March 2022

Particulars

{i) Mutual fund 107.35 200.78
{if) Equity instruments 9.01 10.48
{ili} Debentures and 8onds (quoted) 1,402.42 578.65
(iv) Debentures and Bonds {unguoted) 975.00 -
Total - Gross 2,493.78 789,91
[i) Investment outside India - -
{ii} Investment in india 2,493.78 73991
Total 2,493.78 789,91

Less: AHowance far impairment -
Total net 2,453,783 789.91




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the finandal statements {continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in miflions)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

10 Details of stock-in-trade Quantity  Face Value Amourt Quantity  Face Value Amount
Carried at Fair Value through Profit and Loss

A Securities
Equity shares {quoted)
IRIS Business Services Limited - - - 104,000 0 1048
Five Core Electronics 23,000 10 0.00 23,000 10 0.00
Suven Pharmaceuticals Ltd 15,545 1 7.34 - - -
Ajanta Pharma Lid 200 2 0.2 -
BEMI, Land Assets Ltd. 1,000 10 0.37 - -
Godawari Power 8 Ispat Ltd 687 5 D.24 - - -
Hinduja Global Sofutions Lid. 250 10 0.26 - - -
REDTAPE 500 2 a.11 - -
Symphony Limited 250 2 a.25 - -
Welspun Enterprises Ltd 1,579 10 Q.20 - g

9.01

B Dehentares and bonds {Quoted)
10.65% EDELWEISS RURAL & CORPORATE SERVICES LIMATED

07.04.2022 BONDS - - - 250 1,000,000 254.71

4. 77% EDELWEISS COMMODITIES SERVICES UMITED

04.05.2024 BONDS 1,369 1,000,000 1,402.42 - - -

©.%5% Ecap Equities Limited 30.04.2024 BONDS . - - 201 1,600,000 223.50

10.65% EDELWEISS RURAL & CORPORATE SERVICES LIMITED

18.04.2022 BONDS - . - 100 1,000,000 100.45
1,402.42 578.6%

€ Mutual funds {unguoted)
SBI Overnight Fund - Direct Plan - Growth {SBIOFDPG) 2%,416.49 - 107.35 58,007 - 20078
107.35 200.78

D Debentures and bonds junguated)

EDEL FINANCE COMPANY UMITEDABLI04A 5,001 106,000 503.44 - - -
EDEL FINANCE COMPANY LIMITEDAGCI0AA0L 4,693 109,000 471.56 .- - -
975.00 -
Total Stock in trade {A+B+C+D) 2,493,78 789.91
— [RRSURR Al

: MUNDAL




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Cantinued)

[Currency - Indian rupees in millians}

11 Trade receivables:

Particulars 31 March 2023 ] 31 March 2022
Receivables considered good - Unsecured 0.73 0.18
Receivables considered good - Unsecured - Group 2357 0.62
Receivables - Credit impaired 0.09 -
24.39 0.80
Less : Allowance for expected credit fosses 0.0%
24.30 0.80

Ageing of Trade raceivables

less than &
Trade receivables days past due manths 6 months -1 year 1-2 years Total
As at March 31, 2023
Undisputed Trade receivabies - considered good 24.39 - - 24.39
Lease receivables - B -
ECL provision {0.03) - - {0.09)
Net carrying amount 25.30 - - 24.30

As at March 31, 2022
Undisputed Trade receivables — considered good 0.80 - - 0.80
Lease receivables - -
ECL provision - -
[Net carrying amount 0.80 - E 0.80

MLIMTAL
e NO.




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continuzed)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

12 Leans
at amortised cost:
Particulars As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Unsecured - Group - 952.01
Unsecured .
Total Gross - 952.01
Less: Impairment loss allowance - 2.17)
Total {Net) - 951.84
toansin India
Public Sectors - -
Others - 952.01
Total Gross - 952.01
Less: Impairment loss aflowance - 6.17)
Total [(Net} - 951.84




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
{Carrency : Indian rupses in millions

13 Investments

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
At cost At cost
{subsidiaries, (subsidiaries,
At fair value JAt amortised | associates, and At fair value |At amortised | associates, and
Particulars throwgh F&L cost joiat ventures}| Total| through P&L| cost| joint ventures)| Total
nvestemeants in subsidiaries
Equity - 2,384.39 2,284.39 - - 2,384.39 2,384.3%
Investments in group companies
Equity® 221.86 221.86 - - 221.86 22185
Preference shares [convertible} 123.88 123.88 - - 12388 12388
Investements In Debt securities of other companies 187 - 387
TOTAL - Gross (A) - 273013 2,730.13 - 3,87 2,73013 2,734.00
{i} investments oulside India - - . - - B . -
(i) Investmeant in indfa - - 273013 2,710.13 - 3.87 2,730.13 2,734.90
Total {8) - - 2,730.13 2,730.13 B 3.87 2,73013 2,734.00
Less: Alfowance for impairment {C) - - - - - - -
Tolal Net (A-C) - B 2,730.13 2,730.13 - 387 2,73013 2,734.90

*Note - Equity Investiment of s 221 86 miltions (Previous year Rs 221.86 millions) is pledged against NCDs issued by group company

MUNMBA

FIRN O,




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the Enancial statements [Continued}

{Currency : Indian rupeas in milfions}

As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
Face Vaiue Qrantity Amount Face Value Quantity Amount

13 {a) Investments
Noa-Current investments
Investrments in equity instruments of subsidiaries (fully paid up}

Carried at Cost
Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited 10 30,258,333 2,384.39 10 30,258,333 2,384.39

in equity inst of group companies [fully pafd
up}
Carrled at Cost
Fdelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 10 £0,564,536 221.86 18 10,564,536 221.86

Curreat nvestments
Investements in CCPS of other companies (fully paid up}

Unquoted
Carrled at Cost
Alliumn Finance Private Umited 10 951,056 123.88 10 551,056 123.88

ntsin debt § of ather panies {quoted]
Carried at Cost

W. S Industries {India) Lmited - - - 200,000 58 3.87

2,730.13 2,734.00




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

(Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

13 {b)

investments measured at amortised cost

The table below shows the gross carrying amount of the Group’s investments measured at amortised cost by credit risk,
based on the Group's internal credit rating system and year-end stage classification. The amount presented are gross of
impairment allowances. Details of the Group’s internal grading system and policies on whether ECL aliowances are

calculated an an individual or collective basis are set out in Note

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Gross carrying

Gross carrying

Particulars
amount ameount
{Stage 1) {Stage 1)
High grade . 387
Standard grade . B
Individuaily impaired - B
Total . 3.87

Reconciliation of gross carrying amount for investments measured at amortised cost

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Gross earrying

Gross carrying

Particulars

amount 2Mount

{Stage 1) {Stage 1)
Gross carrying amount - opening balance 3.87 3.87
New assets originated or purchased - -
Assets derecagnised or matured {excluding write offs) {including gains / losses thereont} {3.87} -
Changes to contractual cash flows due to modifications not resuiting in derecognition - -
Amaunts written off - -
Transfer to Stage 1 - -
Transfer to Stage 2 . B
Transfer to Stage 3 - -
Gross carrying amount - closing balance - 3.87




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued}

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

14

15

16

Other financial assets

{Unsecured, considered good)

Deposits placed with/exchange/depositories

Deposits- athers

Marsgin placed with broker

Advances recoverable in cash or in kind or for value to be received

Loans & Advances to Employees

Current tax assets {net}

Advance income taxes

Deferred tax assets {net)

Provision for non-performing,restructured and doubtful advances
Property, piant and equipment and intangibles

Difference between book and tax depreciation {including intangibles)
Investments and other financial instruments

Unrealised loss on Derivatives

Fair valuation of investments and stock-in-trade
Employee benefit obligations

Pravision for leave accumulation

Disallowances under section 438 of the Income Tax Act, 1961
Unused tax losses

Accumnulated Losses

Deferred tax liahilities

Property, plant and equipment and intangibles
Difference between hook and tax depreciation {including intangibles)

|nyestments and other financial instruments
Unrealised Gain On Cerivatives
Fair valuaticn of investments and stock-in-trade

As at
31 March 2023
Total

As at
31 March 2022
Total

0.23 033
0.27 027
0.35 66.86
15.47 795
0.66 -
17.08 7541
48.00 45.65
43.60 45.65
t.02 -

- 045
003 -

- 1.67
1.20 0.79

31.42 26.38
203.71 206.03
236.40 235.32

0.23 -

- 4.86
1.50 -
173 4.86

234.68 230.46




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Conbinued)
{Currency - indian rupees in millions)

16.1

(a}

CH

Income tax disciosure:

The components of ncame tax expense for the years ended 31 March 2023 and 31 March 2022 are:

losses

Others

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2622

Adjustment in raspact of currentincome tax of prior years - (3.45)

Deferred tax refating to origination and reversal of temporary 199.69 236.03

differences

Defersed tax recognised on unused tax credit or unused tax losses {203.71} (206.02)

Total tax charge {4.02) 26.55

Current tax - (3.46)

Defarred tax {4.02) 30.01

Reconciliation of totat tax charge

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Accounting prafit before tax as per financial statements {42227} 194,26

Tax rate {in percentage) 25.17%] 25.17%

Income tax expense cafculated Sased on this 1ax rate {106.28| 26.22

Adjustment in respect of current income tax of prior years - 13.48)

Effect of income not subject to tax:

Others - Interest expenses on preference share- Group -

Effect of non-recognition of deferred tax asset on current-period 5535

Effect of utilisation of tax losses or deferred tax assets on losses - {3.45)

earfier recoznised naw considered not recoverable

Write-down of Minimum Altemnate Tax credit which is not - -

considered recovesable

Impact of tax rate changes - -
6.91 224

Tax charge for the year recorded in PRL [4.02) 26.55

NMUKBAL
FR= No.

103429W




Edelcap Securities Limited
Mates to the financiat statements [Continued)
[Currency : Ingian rupees in millions)

16.1

{e)

fe)

fncome tax disclosure:

The following table shows deferred tax recorded in the balance sheet and changes recorded in the Income tax exgensa:

Mavement for the period {2

22-23)

Opening deferred {Recagnised in Recognised i Tota! movement |Closing deferred

tax asset [ profit or loss. other tax asset /

{lfability) b (fiablity}

incama

Deferred taxes in relation to:
Praoperty, Plant and Equipment 0.45 10.69] (.69} 0.23)
Trade raceivable - 0.02 - 042 0.02
Other investments {equily instrumaents} 4.39 - - B 439
Stock-in-trade (2.72) {3.17) - 3.17) £5.89)
Trade receivable - - - - -
Employee benefits obligations 2717 5.25 0.19 5.45 3261
Fair valuation of derivatives 4.86} 4.91 - 4.9 005
Unused tax losses {inciuding but not limited to business fosses, 206.02 {2.31) - 2.31 20371
ynak bed ion)
Total 230.45 4.0% 0.19 4.2t 23458

Opening deferred [Recognised in

Recogrised in

Movemant for the pericd (2021-22)

Total movement

Closing deferred

tax asset [ profit or loss othar tax asset /
lliability) {lrability)
Defarsed taxes in relation to:
Property, Plant and Equipment 0.39 0.06 106 046
Other investments {equity instruments) 439 - - 429
Stock-in-trade 17.34) 4.82 482 2.72)
Trade receivable 001 {o.0L) - oen {D.00)
Employee benefits obliaations 1017 16.95 0.0% 17.00 17
Fair valuation of derivatives 4.26 {9.12) {2121 {4.86)
Unused tax losses (including but nat Jimited to business losses, 248,74 {42.71) - [42.71) 20602
d denreriztion),
Total 260,42 {30,013 0.0% [29.56) 23046
Detalls of temporary differences wheve deferred 1ax assets have not been recognised tn the balance sheet
As at March 31, 2023 Unused tax losses
Financial Year to which the lossrelates to bsorbed Depred Loss/ Short term capital loss Tota!
Amount Expiry year - Amount Expiry year - Amount
finansizl vear financlal ¥ear
202223 - o expiry. 378.82 {31 March 2031 378.82
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Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements ({Continued)

As at As at

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

18 Other non-financial assets
[Unsecured, considered good)

Input tax credit 63.59 23.90
Advances to others 0.01 c.01
Prepaid expenses 6.82 558
Vendor advances 3.66 1.95
Advance to employee 0.53 0.45
74.61 31.89
19 Trade payables
Trade payables from related parties 18.64 8.02
Trade payables - Others 17.84 552
36.48 13.54
Qutstanding for less than 1 year from due date of payment
(i) MSME - 065
{ii} Others 36.48 12.88
36.48 13.54

Unbilled amount due of March 2023 is Rs 16.03 millions (March 2022- Rs 4.21 millions).

19.1 Details of dues to micro and small enterprises

Trade payables includes Rs. Nil {Previous year: Rs. 0.65 millions} payable to "Suppliers” registared under the Micro, Small
and Medium Enterprises Development Act, 2006. No interest has been paid/is payable by the Company during the year to
"Suppliers” registered under this act. The aforementioned is based on the responses received by the Company to its

inquiries with suppliers with regard to applicability under the said act.




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
(Currency : indian rupees in miflions}

20 Borrowings (other than debt securities}- at amortised cost

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Unsecured, considered good
Loan From related parties 1,564.51
Total - Gross 1,564.51 -
(i) Borrowings outside India - -
{i1) Borrowings in India 1,564.51
1,564.51 -

*{at interest rate of)

21 Subordinated liabiities -at amortised cost

11.14% to 14.60%

Particulars

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

22 Other financial liabilities
Gther payables

Accrued salaries and benefits
Interest payable-CCD

’gﬁ:&%{g N

ML A
' Fiees Mo,

31 March 2023

Preference shares capital - 4,133,13
Total - Gross - £,133.13
(i) Borrowings outside India - -

{ii} Borrowings in india - 4,133.13
Total - 4,133.13

As at As at

31 March 2022

5.22 20.90
212.87 120.14
0.01 -
218.10 141.04




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
As at As at

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

23 Current tax liabilities (net)

Provision for taxation 5.77 5.65
5.77 5.65
24 Provisions
Provision for employee benefits
Gratuity 25.52 17.75
Compensated leave absences 4.77 3.12
Provision far capital expenditure 3.02 -
33.31 20.87
25 Other non-financial liabilities
Withholding taxes, goods and service tax and other taxes payable 11.34 5.33
Others 0.10 0.10
11.44 543

 «
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Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

26

27

Equity share capital
Authorised :

50,000,000 {Pravious year: 300,000) equity shares of Rs. 10 each
Nil {Previous year: 49,700,000) preference shares of Rs. 10 each

issued, Subscribed and Paid up:
38,925,000 {Previous year: 300,000} equity shares of Rs. 10 each

Movement in share capital

Outstanding at the beginning of the year
Shares issued during the year
Duistanding at the end of the year

Terms/rights attached to equity shares !

As at
31 March 2023

As at
31 March 2022

500.00 3.00
. 497.00
500.00 500.60
389.25 3.00
389,25 3.00
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No. of shares Amount No. of shares Amount

380,000 3.60 300,000 3.00

38,625,000 386.25 - -
38,925,000 389.25 300,000 3.00

The Company has only ene class of equity shares having a par value of Rs. 10. Each halder of equity shares is entitled t¢ cne vote per share held. in
the event of liquidation of the Company, the holders of equity shares will be entitled to receive remaining assets of the Company, after distribution
of all preferential amounts. The distribution will be in propartion to the number of equity shares held by the shareholders.

Shares held by holding/ultimate holding company and/ar their subsidiaries/associates

Hoelding company

Ecap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited), the hoiding
company and its nominees

Instruments entirely equity in nature

0.01% Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {CCDs) of Rs.10
each

Movement in instruments during the year :

(.01% Compulsarily Convertible Debentures {€CDs)
Qutstanding at the beginning of the year

Issued during the year

Qutstanding at the end of the year

Terms/rights attacked to instruments entirely equity In nature :

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

No of shares % No of shares %
38,925,000 100 300,000 100
355915,000 100 300,000 100

m— =
As at 31 March 2023 As at 31 March 2022
3,250.00 - -
. 525000 . -

As at 31 March 2023

As at 31 March 2022

No of CCDs Amount No of CCDs Amourit
325,000,000 3,250.00 - -
325,000,000 3,250.00 - -

The interest rate is 0.01% per annum and CCDs wil! be convertible into equity shares within period not exceeding 10 years from the date of issue.

Details of holders holding more than 5%

--Ecap Equities Ltimited {formerly Edel Land Limited) -~

As at 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
No. of CCD's % No. of CCB's %
e BRE000,000 o LOOR e e
325,000,000 100% 100%




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millicns)

As at As at
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
28 Other Equity
Capital redempticn reserve
Opening batance -
Add : Additions during the year 100.00 -

100,00

beemed capital contribution - ESOP
Opening balance 3.61 361
Add : Additions during the year - _

3,61 361
Opening balance 592.46 512.81
Less: Transferred to Capital redemption reserve {100.00) -
Add: Profit / {Loss) for the year {418.25) 17.62
Add: ESOP reversal on fapse of vesting period 0.30 2.18
Add: Other comprehansive income for the year {0.57} (0.14)
Amount available for appropriation 73.95 592.46

Appropriations: - _

177.55 596.07
_———




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial staterments (Continued)
[Currency : Indian rupees in millions} For the year ended For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Revenue from operations
29 interest Income
On financial assets measured at amortised cost
Interest on Loans

Interest income on loan to subsidiary companies 35.14 105.33
Interest on deposits with bank

Interest income on fixed deposits 0.39 0.36
Investments

On margin with brokers 0.49 1.55

Interest Income - WS Industries Limited 2.90 34.12

Interest Income - Others 0.07 0.01
On financial assets classified at fair value through profit or loss

Interest income from Debt instruments held as stock in trade 120.93 76.78

159.92 218.15

30 Dividend income

Dividend on stock in trade 2.54 0.88

2.54 0.88

31 Fee income

Advisary and other fees - 0.49

- 0.49

31.1 Particulars

Service transferred at a point in time - 0.49
Service transferred over time - -
Total revenue from contract with customers - 0.4%

32 Net gain on fair value changes

Met gain on fair value changes
On trading portfolio

Investments
Profit / {loss) on trading of securities {net) {99.10} (148.47)
Fair value gain - P&L - equity {7.02) {19.12)
Fair value gain - P&L - debt 4.94 -
Profit / (loss) on equity derivative instruments (net) 350.30 526.80
Profit on trading in currency derivative instruments (net) {69.50) 69.79
Profit on interest rate derivative instruments [net) 37.70 (30.41}
217.32 398.59
Fair value changes:
- Reatised 225.02 375.37
- Unrealised {7.79) 23.22
Total net gain/floss on fair value changes 217.32 398.59
33 Other income
Credit Balance Written Back* 0.00 0.08
........ o DRIt Y Sl Of FIKRE AR TBE) L g L G
tnterest income on income tax refund 0.03 0.56
Miscellaneous income ’ o " o 303 ’ ’ 011"
3.09 0.90

*0.00 represents amounts less than 5,000

MUMBA]
FFend No.




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued}

{Currency : Indian rupees in miliions} For the year ended  For the year ended
31 March 2023 31 March 2022

34 Finance costs
On Financial Habilities measured at amortised cost

interest on loan from fellow subsidiaries 42,72 49.90
interest on debentures 6.01 -
Financial and bank charges 0.09 G.06
Interest - others 0.13 0.50
42,95 50.46

35 Impairment on financial instruments

On trade receivables 0.09 -
On loans (0.17) 0.17
{0.08) 0.17

36 Employee benefit expenses

Salaries and wages 432.75 229.66
Contribution to provident and other funds 13.43 9.24
Expense on employee stock option scheme {ESOP) {1.94) {0.46)
Expense on Employee Stock Appreciation Rights (4.45) {2.07)
Staff welfare expenses 31.70 6.29

471.49 242.66

36.1 Employee stock aption plans

The Holding Company (Edelweiss Financial Services Limited [“EFSL”)} has Employee Stock Option Plans in force.
Based on such ESOP schemes, parent entity has granted an ESOP option to acquire equity shares of EFSL that would
vest in a graded manner to company’s employees. Based on group policy / arrangement, £F5L. has charged the fair
value of such stock options, Company has accepted such ¢ross charge and recognised the same under the employee
cost,
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Notes to the financial statements {Continued}

{Currency : Indian rupees in miilions}

37

37.1

Other expenses

Advertisement and business premotion
Auditors' remuneration {refer note below)
Commission and brokerage
Communication

Computer expenses

Computer software

Clearing and custodian charges
Dematerialisation charges
Electricity charges

Foreign exchange loss (net)
Insurance

Legal and professional fees
Membership and subscription
Office expenses

Postage and courier

Printing and stationery

Rates and taxes

Rent

Repairs and maintenance

ROC expenses*

Securities transaction tax

Seminar and canference*

Goods and service tax expenses
Stamp duty

Stock exchange expenses
Travelling and conveyance
Miscellaneous expenses*
Housekeeping and security charges

Auditors' remuneration;
As auditers
Cthers

*0.00 represents amounts less than 5,000

For the year ended
31 March 2023

For the year ended
31 March 2022

1.01 0.36
1.25 110
- 2.78
2.90 173
92,95 73.58
7.40 10.60
19.62 37.53
“ 0.02
1.12 4.38
0.1 0.04
0.93 012
16.94 331
43.18 7.50
1.30 0.71
0.03 -
0.21 0.14
0.04 0.04
23.26 16.69
1.04 0.08
0.02 0.0
21.03 17.09
0.05 0.00
7.01 4.46
3.24 2.10
21.77 20.40
7.27 3.41
0.07 0.00
5.59 2.03
279.38 21573
1.23 1.10
0.02
1.25 110
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Notes to the financial statements [Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}
37 Other expenses { continued )

37.2 Foreign currency transaction
The Company has incurred an amount of Rs, 11.00 millions {Previous year: Rs. 4.88 miflions) in foreign currency towards

market data service. Earning in foreign eéxchange Nil (Previous year: Nil}.

37.3 Costsharing

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited, being the uitimate holding company along with fellow subsidiaries incurs expenditure
like Group mediclaim, insurance, rent, electricity charges etc. which is for the common benefit of itself and its certain
subsidiarias, feliow subsidiaries including the Company. This cest so expended is reimbursed by the Company on the basis
of number of employees, area occupled, actual identifications, etc. Accerdingly, and as identified by the management, the
expenditure heads in note 37 include reimbursements paid and are net of reimbursements received based on the

management’s best estimate,

37.4 Corporate social responsibifity (CSR)

As per the provisions of section 135 of the Companies Act, 2013,

The Company is not required to spend any amount during the year (Previous year: Nil).

w / MUMBAL
YR No,




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued})
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

38 Segment Reporting
The Company’'s business is organised and management reviews the performance based an the business segments as mentianed

below:
Segment Activities covered
Capital based business Interest income on loans and other capital based activities
Agency business Broking, adviscry and product distribution services
Income from treasury operations, income from investments, interest
Treasury income on debtinstruments and dividend income

Income for each segment has been specifically identified. Expenditures, assets and liabilities are either specifically identified
with individual segments or have been allocated to segments on a systematic/reasonable hasis,
Based on such aliocations, segment disclosures relating to revenue, results, assets and liabilities have been prepared.

Since the business operations of the Company are primarily concentrated in india, the Company is considered to operate only in
the domestic segment and therefore there is no reportable geographic segment,
The following table gives information as required under the ind AS -108 - Operating Segment Reporting:

. For the year ended | For the year ended
Particulars
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
I |Segment revenue
a) Capital based business 35.14 105.39
b} Agency business . 0.49
¢} Treasury 347.70 512.57
d} Unallocated 0.03 0.56
Total income 382.87 619.01
fl  {Segment results
a) Capital based business 34.01 42.35
b) Agency business - 0.20
c} Treasury {456.30) 61.55
d} Unallocated 0.02 0.07
Total {422.27) 104.16
Less : Provision for taxation (4.02) 26.54
{Loss}/Profit after taxation {418.25) 77.62
HI  |Segment assets .
a) Capital based business 2,730.35 3,685.48
b} Agency business . 0.11
¢} Treasury 2,631.92 925.04
d} Unallocated 346.26 308,10
Total 5,708.53 4,918.72
IV [Segment Liabilities
a) Capital based business 3.38 4,162.96
b} Agency business - 0.14
c) Treasury 1,871.23 145.47
d} Unallocated 17.12 11.08
Total 1,891.73 4,319.65




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements {continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

39 Related Parties disclosure in accardance with nd AS 24:

In accordance with Indian Accounting Standard 24 on Related party transactions notified under section 133 of the Companies Act 2613, read with

Rule 7 of the Compantes {Accounts) Rules, 2014.

List of related parties and relationship:

Name of related parties by whom control is exercised

Name of related parties ever whom control is exercised

Fellow Subsidiaries
{with whom transactions have taken place)

Associate companies with whom transactions have taken
place:

Key Management Personnel
{with whom transactions have taken place)

Edelweiss Financial Services Limited {UItimate holding company)
ECap Equities Limited [formerly Edel Land Limited) (Holding company)

Edelweiss Retail Finance Limited
Edetweiss Rural & Corporate Services Limited

Edeiweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited

ZUNO General insurance Limited {formerly Edelweiss General insurance Company
Limited)

£delweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited

£delweiss Investments Advisor Limited

£del investments Limited

Allium Finance Privete Limited

Edel Finance Company Ltd

ECL finance Limited

ECap Securities And Investments Limited (formerly £Cap Equities Limited}

Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {formerly Edelweiss Securities Limited) {upto
30-March-2023}

Nuvama Wealth and investment Limited {formerly Edelweiss Broking Limited) {(upto
30-March-2023)

Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly Edelwelss Custodial Services Limited)
{upto 30-March-20231

Nuvama Wealth Finance Limited (formerly Edelweiss Finance & Investments
Limited) {upto 30-March-2023)

Muvama Asset Management Limited (formerly known as ESt Securifles Limited}

{upto 30-March-2023)

Riteparna Barman Roy - Executive Director

Piyush Chamria - Executive Director

Sonal Deshpande - Executive Director

Ritesh fain - Chief Financial Officer

Akshaya Mishra {Upto January 20, 2023) - Company Secretary
Akash Soni {From January 20, 2023} - Company Secretary

'
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Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements (continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

39 Related Partias disclosure in accordance with ind AS 24 (continued}:

i Transactions with related parties :

S

Nature of transaction
No.

Related party name

Far the year ended
March 31, 2023

For tha year ended
March 3%, 2022

1 [{ssue of Equity Share capital

2 [Short term koans taken from

3 jShort term loans repaid 1o

&  |Short term igans given to

5 |short term loans regaid by

& [issue of preferance share capital
7 }sate Investment in Preference share capital

8 {Redeamtion of Preferanca share capital

9 |Margin placed with broker

10 |Margin withdrawn from broker

11 iinterest income on margin placed with

12 |Interest income on group loan

13 |nterest expense on foan from

14 |Interest income on Debt instruments

15 finterest expense on CCOs from

16 |Costreimbursements paid to

17 IReimburtements paid to

18 ECost reimbursements received from

15 |£SOP and SAR expense paid to

20 [sale of Fixed Asset to

2

=

Purchase of Fixed Asset from

£Cap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 386.25 B
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Lirvited) - 5.757.09
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 142858 784.48
Edel Finance Company Lid 2,18355 -
ECap Equities Limited {farmerly £dat Land Limiled} - B,123.54
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Servites Limited 1,428.58 784.48
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edet Lang Limited) - 2,514.04
Edehweiss Rural and Corpotate Services Limited 1,079.80 436372
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) - 2,514.04
Edebweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 2,024.26 4,019.26
ECan Equities Limited (Formerly Edel tand Limied) 4,133.13
Edef Investments Limited - 750.00
ECap £quities Limited [formerly Edel Land Limited} 4,133.13 4,376.25
Edei fnvestments Limited 1593.00
MNuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly Edelweiss
Custodial Services Limitedh 7,725.87 1235600
Edal Investrents Limited*® 4%.45 .00
MNuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly Edolweiss
Custadial Serces Limited) 7,797.51 12,882.67
Edef nvestments Limited® 49.36 [13:13
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited {formerly Edelweiss
Custodial Services Limited} Q.45 155
ECap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited} - 57.97
Edeiweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 5.1 47,36
ECap Equities Lirmited {formerly Edel Land Limited} - 4B.60
Edolweiss Rural and Corperate Seivices Limited 30.37 130
Edel finance Cormpany Ltd 1236 -
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 76.3% 4.37
ECap Equities Limited (formerly Edet Land Limited) 44,58 281
€Cap Equities Limized (formerly Edef Land Limited) 001 -
£dehweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 7432
Edefweiss Financizal Services Limited .70
Nuvama Wealth and lnvestment Limited (formerly
Edelweiss Broking Limited) - 0.07
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 152 161
ECL Finance Limited 114
ECap Equities Limited! {formerly Edel Land Limited) 143
Muvamas Wealth Mansgement Limited {formerty
Edelweiss Securties timitedt . 0.01
Edel Investraents Limited 168
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services bmited” .60 013
Mivama Wealth and Investment Limited {formerly
Edelweiss Sroking Limited] 1.80 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 6.3% 252
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Bimited 0.30 003
€01 Finance Limited™ - 0.00
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (formerly
€dalweiss Secunties Limited)* 0.00
L Wealth and Limitad {F ty
Edeiweiss Broking Limited)? - .00
ECap Equities Limited (formarly Edel Land Lirsited) 043 0.03
Edel Investments Limited 0.86 0.28
ECap Equilies Lirnited {farmerly Edel Land Limited)? f.oe .03
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited - 005
Edel investments Limited” G41 0.00
Nuvama Wealth and Investment Limited {formerly
Edeh froking Limited)” 0.00 -
Nuvama Wealth Management Limited {Formerdy
Edebweiss Securities Lirmited) 043
Nuvama Cearing Services Limited (formerly Edelweiss
Custodial Services Limited)® 0.00 -
h Wealth Finance Limited flormerty. Edelweiss D
Finance & Investments Limited)” 0.00 -
Edelweiss Financial Services Limited™ - 0.00
AECL Einance. Linited 0.04




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements [continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

39 Related Parties disclosure in accordance with ind AS 24 (continued):

Fransactions with related parties :

For the year ended

For the year ended

Sr.
N ction iRelat
No, | "Hature of transa elated party name March 31, 2023 March 31, 2022
22 iClearing charges, Demat, Trade exposure charges Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerly Edelweiss
paid to aad Infrastructure service charges Custodial Services Limited) 16.64 31.74
23 {Brokerage paid to Nuvama Wealth Management Limited (formerly
Edebweiss Securities Limited} - 4.60
Edet Investments Limited 500 0.86
24 |Ami paid to broker for Cash segment Muvama Wealth Management Limited (formeriy
Edelweiss Securities Limited) - 10,805.67
Eded Investments Limited 7,685.46 1.85
25 |Amt received from broker far Cash segment Nuvama Weaith Management Limited {formerly . 12,398.18
Edel Investments Limited 7,623.00 4.67
26 |Sale of Debt securities ECap Equities Limited (formerly £del Land Limited) 341.34 $78.56
Edel Investments Limited . 109.91
£Cap Eguities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited} 219.69
£Cap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited) 263.27
27 |Redemption of Debt securities Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 355.56 -
ECap Equities Limited (formerlv Edef Land Limited) 538.78 -
28 |Purchase of Debt Securities £del Investments Limited - 220.84
£Cap Equities Limited (formerly Ede! Land Limited) 1,757.38 657.96
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 373.85 -
Edelwelss investment Adviser Limited 78.81 -
2% {Purchase of NLD Edel Finance Company b1d 975.00 -
30 jRemuneration paid to Rituparna Barman Roy 13.44 13.78
Piyush Chamria 1133 -
sonal Deshpande 2.65 3.33
Ritesh Jain 3.30 6.68
Akshaya Mishra {Unto January 20, 2023) 454 4.97
Akash Soni {From January 20, 2023} 0.11 -
31 |Research fees paid to Nuvama Weaith Management Limited (formerly
Edetweiss Securities Limited} 18.00 -
Nuvama Weaith and Investment Limited (formerly
Edefweiss Broking Limited) 18.00 -
32 [Consultancy & other Advisory fees paid to Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 1.53 -
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services timited 206 -
33 |Compulsorily Convertible Debentures {CCDs) issued  {ECap Equities Limited {formerly £del Land Limited)
to 3,250.00
Balances with Related Parties
34 |Compulsorily convertible debentures held by ECap Eqguities Limited fformerly Edel Land Limited} 3,250.00
35 [Preference share capital issued to £Cap Equities Limited {formerly Edel Land Limited} - 413313
36 [Short term loans taken from Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited - -
Edel Finance Company Ltd 1,554.78 -
37 iShort term foans given to Edebweiss Rural and Corperate Services Limited - 944,46
38 |Interest receivable on foans given to £delweiss Rural ard Corporate Services Limited - 7.55
39 |interest pavable onioans taken from £del Finance Company Ltd 373 -
40 [interest receivable on debt instrument Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 1789 4.62
ECap Eauities Limited (formerly Edef Land Limited] - 6.18
41 |Accrued interest expense on £C0s ECap Equities Limited {formeriy Edel Land Limited) 0.01 -
42 |Trade pavablesto Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisars Limited 0.14 0.15
Edelweiss Financial Services Umited 0.08 0.83
Edefweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 17.57 627
Edef Investmeants Limited 0.21 0.10
ECap Equities Limited {formerfy Edel Land Limited) - 0.03
43 |Other pavable to Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 0.58 -
ECLFinance imited ... T A1
£de Investments Limited c.01 20.48
£Cap Equities Limited (formerly Edel Land Limited) 2 -
""" ECAD SEciritics And Tivestments Limited 1 -
Edelweiss Alternative Asset Advisors Limited 101 -
44 {Other Receivable from Edelweiss Financial Services Limited 7.40 4.59
£Cap Equities Limited [formerly Edel Land Limited) - 0.03
Edelweiss Rural and Corporate Services Limited 0.01 -
ECL Finance Limited 017 2.83
Edel lovestments Limited 7.70 0.66
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{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)
39 Aelated Parties disclosure in accordancs with Ind AS 24 {continued):

il Transactions with refated parties @

Sr. For the year endad For the year endad
Nature of transacti
No, | oo ransaction Related party name Warch 31, 2023 March 31, 7622
45 |Trade receivables from ZUND Genert Insuzance Limited {formedy Edelweiss
0.00 000

General Insyrance Comoany Limited)®

Nuvama Wealth and investmant Limited {formerty
Edetweiss Broking Limitad) 0.01
Nuvama Clearing Services Limited (formerdy €delweiss

Custodial Services Limitedi - 015
Edelweiss Rurat and Corporate Services Limited 145 001
Edel Investments Limited 19.99 -
46 |investment in Debt securities Edetweiss Rural and Corporare Services Limited 1,384.74 350,53
£Cap Equities Limited {formerty Edet Land Limited) - 23731
47 |lavestments in equity shares of Edeiweiss Retaif Finance Limited 2,384 3% 2,384.39
Edelweiss Asset Reconstruction Company Limited 221.86 22186
48 |investment in preference shares of Aflium Finance Private Limited 123.88 12388
49 {Margins placed with broker Nuvama Clearing Services Himited (formerly Edelweiss
99.2%

Custadial Services Limitad)

50 [Margin payable to £dsl Investments Limited 2000

*0.00 reprasents amowvnts less than 5,000

Nota:

Note 1 : Loan givenftaken toffrom parties and margin money placed / refund received with/ from refated parties are disclosed based on the aggregare debit amount given/taken and
ptaced / refund received during the reporting period.

Iote 2 : As part of fund based activities, intergroup company loans and advances activities undentaken are generally in the nature of loans repayable at any ¥me before maturity,
Such loans and advances, voluminous in nature, are carried on at arm’s length and in the ordinary course of business, Pursuant to Ind AS 24 — Related Party Disclosures, surm of foans

taken and repaid are disclosed. Interest expenses on such loans and advances are disclosed on the hasis of full amounts of such toans and advances taken and repaid.

Mote 3 Information relating to remuneration paid to key manageria! person mentioned above excludes provision made for gratuity, feave encashment ang defarred honus which are
provided for group of employees on an overalf basis. These are included on cash basis. The variable compensation included herein is on cash basis.

Note & : Disclosure under section 186(4) of the Companies Act, 2013 for loaas and guarantee - Loans have heen given for general businpss purpose.
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Notes to the financial statements (continued)
[Cusrency : Indian rupees in millions)

a0 Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share (EPS) is calculated by dividing the net profit for the year attributable to equity holders by the weighted average
number of equity shares outstanding diuring the year.

Diluted EPS is calculated by dividing the net profit attributable to equity holders (after adjusting for interest on the converticle
preference shares and interest on the convertible bond, in each case, net of tax) by the weighted average number of equity shares
outstanding during the year plus the weighted average number of equity shares that would be issued on the conversion of all the
dilutive potential ordinary shares inte ordinary shares.

Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
[a) [Profit / {loss) after tax (418.25) 77.62
Less: dividend on preference share capital . B
Net profit / {loss) far the year attributable to equity shareholders {418.25) 77.62
{b) {Calculation of weighted average number of equity Shares of Rs, 10 each
Number of shares outstanding at the beginning of the year 300,000 300,000
Number of Shares issued during the year 38,625,000 -
Number of shares on conversion of Compulscrily Convertible Debentures {CCDs) 682,500 .
Total number of equity shares outstanding at the end of the year 39,607,500 300,000
Weighted average number of equity shares outstanding during the year (based on the date
of issue of shares) 1,592,301 300,000
{c} {Basic and diluted earnings per share (in rupees} (a)/(b} (262.67) 258.72
41 Contingent liabilities and capital commitments
Contingent liahilities
The Company has pending taxation matters of Rs 3.4 millions as at balance sheet date (Previous year: Rs. 3.4 miflions).
The Cempany has received demand notices from tax authorities on account of disallowance of expenditure for earning exempt income
under Section 14A of income Tax Act 1961 read with Rule 8D of the Income Tax Rules, 1962. The company has filed appeal/s and is
defending its position. Based on the faveurable outcome in Appellate proceedings in the past and as advised by the tax advisors,
company is reasonably certain about sustaining its position in the pending cases, hence the possibility of outflow of resources
embodying economic benefits on this ground is remote.
Capital commitments
The Company has no capital commitments at the balance sheet date {Previous year: Rs. Nil).
42 Risk management framework:-
a} Governance framework
The primary objective of the company’s risk and financiai management framework is to protect the company's shareholders from
events that hinder the sustainable achievement of financial performance objectives, including failing to exploit opportunities. Key
management recognises the critical importance of having efficient and effective risk management systems in place,
b) Approach to capital management

Company objectives when managing capital, are to {a) maximise shareholder value and provide benefits to other stakehclders and (b}
maintain an optimal capital structure to reduce the cost of capital.

For the purposes of the Company’s capital management, capital includes issued capital, share premium and all cther equity reserves
attributable to the equity halders.

Company monitors capital using debt-equity ratio, which is total debt divided by total equity.

Particulars 31 March 2023 21 March 2022
Total Debt 1,564.51 4,133.13

...... Equity 3.816.80] . .. . 599.07%
Net Debt to Equity 6.90
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43 Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee benefits

a} Defined contribution plan {Provident fund):

b

Amount of 8s. 12.28 millions (Previous year: Rs. 8.80 millions) is recognised as expenses and included in “Employee benefit” — Note

38 in the statement of profit and loss.

Defined benefit plan - Gratuity

The following tables summarize the components of the net employee benefit expenses recagnized in the profit and loss account and

the funded status and amounts recognized in the balance sheet for the Gratuity benefit pian.

Reconciliation of Defined Benefit Obligation (DBO)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Present Value of DBO at Start of the year 17.75 36.58
Service Cost
a. Current Service Cost 3.99 2.38
b.{*ast Service Cost - -
¢.Loss/{Gain) from Settlement - -
interest Cost 1.21 0.95
Benefits Paid {0.86} (4.72}
Re-measurements - -
a.Actuariaf Loss/{Gain) from changes in demographic assumptions - 0.46
b.Actuarial Loss/{Gain) from changed in financials assumptions {1.84) (0.63)
c.Actuarial Loss/(Gain] from experience over last past year 2.61 0.35
Transfer In / (Out) 2.66 {17.63)
Present Value of DBO at end of the year 25.52 17.7%
Reconciliation of Fair Value of Plan Assets

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Fair Value of Plan Assets at start of the year - -
Contributions by Employer 0.86 4.72
Benefits Paid [0.86) {4.72)

Interest Income Plan Assets

Re-measurements

Ibenafit liabidity / {asset]

Return on plan assets excluding amount including in net interest on the net defind

Effect of acquisition / [divestiture)

Changes in foreign exchange rate

Fair Value of Plan Assets at end of the year

Actual Return on Plon Assets

Expected Employer Contributions for the coming year
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43  Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee benefits

Expenses recongnised in the Profit and Loss Account

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Service Cost
a.Current Service Cost 3.99 2.38
b.Past Service Cost - -
c.Loss/(Gain) from Settlement - -
Net Interest on net defind benefit liability / (asset) 1.21 0.95
Changes in foreign exchange rate -
Employer Expenses 5.20 3.33

Net Liability / (Asset) recognised in the Balance sheet

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Present Value of DOB 2552 17.75
Fair Value of Plan Assets - -
Liability / (Asset] recongised in the Balance Shaet 25.52 17.75
Funded Status [Surplus/ [Deficit)} {25.52) {17.75)
Of which,Short term Liability 3.95 2.60
Experience Adjustment on Plan Liahilities:(Gain)/Loss 2.61 0.35

Percentage Break-down of Total Plan Assets

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Equity instruments

Debt instruments

Real estate

Derivatives

Investment Funds with insurance Company

QOf which, Unit Linked

Of which, Traditional/ Non-Unit Linked

Asset-backed securities

Structured debt

Cash and cash equivalents

Total

Actuarial assumptions:

31 March 2023

31 March 2022

Salary Growth Rate (% p.a) 7% p.a 7% p.a
Discount Rate (% p.a) 7.1% p.a 59%p.a
Interest Rate an Net DBC / [Assat } (%) 5.9% p.a 5% p.a
Withdrawal Rate {% p.a) 16% p.a 16% p.a
Mortality Rate 1ALM 20112-14 (Uit) fALM 2012-14 [UlL.)
Weighted average during of the ohligation 3.5 Years 4 Years
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43  Disclosure pursuant to Indian Accounting Standard 19 - Employee benefits

Movement in Other Comprehensive Itcome

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Balance at start of year (Loss}/ Gain {9.74) {9.55)
Re-megsuremerts on DBG
a.Actuarial Lass/{Gain) from changes in demographic assumptions - {0.46)
b.Actuarial Less/(Gain) frem changed in financials assumptions 1.84 0.63
c.Actuarial Loss/(Gain) from experience over last past yeay {2.61) {0.35})
Re-measurements on Plan Assets - -
Return on pian assets excluding amount including in net interest on the net defind - -
benefit liability / [asset]
Balance at end of year {Loss)/ Gain 110.50} {9.74)
Senitivity Analysis
i d
DOBincreases / (decreases | by 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
) 1.38 1.01
1 % Increase in Salary Growth Rate
) (1.27) {(1.03)
1% Decrease in Salary Growth Rate
1.25 1.03
1% Increase in Discount Rate { ) ( !
A 139 1.04
1 % Decrease in Discount Rate
N 0.01 (0.06)
1% Increase in Withdrawal Rate
0.01 0.08
1% Decrease in Withdrawal Rate { )
Martality {Increase in expected lifetime by 1 year) Negligible change 1
Mortality (increase in expected lifetime by 3 year) Negligible change 3

Note: The sensitivity is performed on the DBO ot the respective valuation dote by modifying one parameter whilst retaining other
parameters constant. There ore no changes from the previcus period to the methods and assumptions underlying the sensitivity

Movement in Surplus / {Deficit)

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Surplus / {Deficit) at start of year {17.75) {36.58)
Net (Acquisition) / Divestiture . _
Net Tranfer (in)/ Qut {2.66} 17.63
Movement during the year B R
Current Service Cost (3.99) (2.38)
Past Service Cost B N
Net {nterest on net DBO {1.21) (0.95)
Changes in fareign exchange rate - -
Re-measurements {0.77} {0.19)
Contributions / Benefits 0.86 4.72
Surplus / (Deficit} at end of year [25.52) {17.75)




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in mitfions)

44 Liquidity risk:
Liguidity risk is defined as the risk that the Company will encounter gifficulty in meeting obligations associated with financiat fiabilities that are settled by delivaring
cash er another financial asset. Exposure to fiquidity risk arises because of the possibility that the Company could be required to pay its trade payables earller than

expected.

A, Analysis of non-derivative financial Habilities by remaining cantractual maturities

The table below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s non-derivative financial liabilities as at 31 March.
Repayments which are subject to notice are treated as if notice were to be given immediately. However, the Company expects that the counterparties will not

request repayment on the earfiest date it coufd be required to pay.

lyearto3 [Iyearsto S

As at 31 March 2023 0 to 6 monthsi & months to 1 year years years Qver 5 years Total
Trade payabies 17.34 - - - - 17.84
Trade payables - Group 18.64 - - - - 18.64

1.564.51 - - - 1,564.51

Borrowing (other than debt securities) - Group

Other financial Habilities 218.10 - - - - 218.10
Totat undiscounted non-derivative financiat 254,58 1,564.51 - - - 1,819.09
Iyearto3 [Iyearsto 5
As at 31 March 2022 0 to 6 menths| 6 months te 1 year years years Over 5 years Total
Trade payables 5.51 - - - - $.51
Trade payables - Group 8.02 - - - - 802
Subordinated financial liabilities - Group - 4,133.13 - - - 4,133.13
Other financial liabilities 141.04 - - - - 141.04
Total undiscounted non-derivative financial 154.57 4,133.13 - - - 4,287.70

B.  Analysis of non-derivative financial assets by remaining contractual maturities

The tablz below summarises the maturity profile of the undiscounted cash flows of the Company’s non-derivative financial assets as at 31 March.

iyearto3 [Iyearsto 5
As at 3 March 2023 U to 6 menths| 6 manths to 1 year| years YEETS Over 5 years| Total
Cash and cash equivalent and other bark balances 17.28 736 - - - 24.64
Stock-in-trade 2,493.78 - - - - 2,493.78
Trade Receivatles - Group 23.57 - - - - 2357
Trade Receivables - Others 0.73 - - - - 0.73
Investments - Group - 123.88 - - 2,606.25 2,730.13
Other finandial assets - 9.66 0.68 - - 1.26
Other financial assets - Group 8.51 - - - - 8.51
Tatal 2,543.87 131.90 0.60 - 2,606.25 5,282,562




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued}

[Currency : Indian rupees in milfons)

44 Jjguldity risk:

lyearto3 i3yearsta5
As at 31 March 2022 0 to 6 months| & months to 1 year| years| YeRs Over 5 years, Tatal:
Cash and cash equivalant and other bank balances 11.67 6.45 - - - 18.11
Stock-in-trade 78391 - - - . 789.91
Trade Receivables - Group 062 - - - - .62
Trade Receivabies - Dthers 0.18 . - - - 0.18
Leans - Group 951.84 - - - - 951.84
Investments at fair value through profit or loss 3.87 . - - - 3.87
Investments - Group - 3123.88 - - 2,606.25 2,730.13
Other financiat agsets - 0.0% 0450 - 0.69
Other finandial assets - Group 87.83 - - - - 87.83
Total 1,845.91 130.42 0.60 - 2,606.25 4,583.18

€. Maturity analysis for derivatives:

All derivatives which are entered into for trading purposes are shown in the earliest time band, With respect to other derivatives, the remalning contractual
maturity information has been given based on undiscounted cash flows.

lyearto3 [Syearstos

As at 31 March 2023 G to 6 months| 6 months to 1 year yEars years Over 5 years, Tatal
Net settled derivatives entered into for trading

purposes 11.95 - - - - 11.99
Total 11.99 - - - - 11.99

lyearto 3|3 yearstos

As at 31 March 2022 0 te 6 manths| & months to 1 year years YEears| Over 5 years Total
Net settled derivativas entered into for trading

purposes 19.36 - - - 19.36

Total 19.36 - - - - 19.25




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)

{Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

44
{a)

Fair Values of Financial Instruments

Fair Value Hierarchy

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

31 March 2023

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments (assets):

Exchange-traded derivatives 43.61 - - 43.61

Total derivative financial instruments (assets) 431,61 - . 43.61

Stock-in-trade

Other debt securities and preference shares 1,402.42 B 975.00 2,377.52

wutual fund units 107.35 - 107.35

Equity instruments 2.01 - - 9.01

Total stock-in-trade 1,518.78 - 975.00 2,493.78

Investments

Units of AIF - -

Equity instruments - -

Total investments measured at fair value - - - -

Total financial assets measured at Tair Valle on 8 TecuiTmg

basis 1,562.39 - 975.00 2,537.38
31 March 2023

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -

Derivative financial instruments (Liabilities):

Exchange-traded derivatives 31.62 - 31.62

Total derivative financial instruments {liabilities) 31.62 - - 31.62

MUBAI
FRM NoO.
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Notes to the financial statements (Continued)

{Currency : lndign rupees in miflions)

44
{a}

i}

(i)

(iii)

Fair Values of Financial [nstruments
Fair VValue Hierarchy

The following table shows an analysis of financial instruments recorded at fair value by level of the fair value hierarchy

31 March 2022

Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets measured at fair value on a recurring basis

Derivative financial instruments (assets):

Exchange-traded derivatives 55.37 - - 55.37
Total derivative financial instruments {assets) 55.37 - - 55.37
Stock-in-trade

Other debt securities and preference shares 578.65 - - 578.65
Mutual fund units 200.73 - - 200.78
Equity instruments 10.48 - - 10.48
Total stock-in-trade 789.9% - - 789.91
fnvestments

Units of AlF - - - -
Equity instruments - - - -

Total investments measured at fair value - - . N

Total financial assets measured at fair value ona recurring

basis 845.28 - - 845,28
31 March 2022
Particulars Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total

Liabilities measured at fair value on a recurring basis -
Derivative financial instruments (Liabilities):
Exchange-traded derivatives 36.02 - - 36.02

Total derivative financial instruments {liabilities) 36.02 - - 36.02

Fair valuation techniques:

Equity instruments and units of Alternative Investment Funds

The majority of equity instruments are actively traded on recognized stock exchanges with readily avaitable active prices on a
regular basis, Such instruments are classified as Level 1, Units held in funds are measured based on fund net asset value {NAV),
taking into account redemption and/or other restrictions, Such NAV Such instruments are generally Level 3. Equity instruments
in non-listed entities are initiaily recogrised at transaction price and re-measured at each reporting date at valuation provided
by external valuer at instrument level. Unlisted equity securities are classified at Level 3.

Debt securities

Whilst mast of these instruments are standard fixed or floating rate securities, however nifty finked debentures have
embedded derivative characteristics. Fair value of these instruments is derived based on the indicative guotes of price and
yields prevailing in the market as at the reporting date. Company has used guoted price of nationa stock exchange wherever
bonds are traded actively. In cases where debt securities are not activity traded Company has used CRISIL Corporate Bond
Valuer model for measuring fair value.

Derivatives
The Company enters into derivative financial instruments with various counter-parties, primarily banks with investment grade
credit ratings. Derivatives valued using valuation techniques with market observahle inputs are exchange traded futures and
options contracts. The most frequently applied val
-Black Scholes models {for option valuation),




Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements {Continued)
(Currency : Indian rupees in milfions)

44  Fair valres of financial instruments {continued)

(3

Financlal instruments not measured at fair value

The following table sets out the fair values of financial instruments not measured at fair value and analysing them by the leve! in the fair vaiue

hierarchy into which each fair value measurement is categorised.

31 March 2023

Total carrying
Particulars amount Yotal fair value Level 1 Leval 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalent 17.28 17.28 17.28 - -
Bank baiances other than cash and cash equivalent 7.36 7.36 7.36 - -
Trade receivables 0.73 0.73 - 0.73 -
Trade receivables - Group 23.57 23.57 - 2357 -
Investments at cost - Group 2,730.13 2,730.13 2,730.13
Other financial assets 16.73 16.73 - 16.73 -
Other financial assets - Group .35 0.35 0.35 - -
Total 2,796.15 2,796.15 24,99 2,771.16 -
Financial Habiities:
Trade payables 17.84 17.84 - 17.84 -
Trade payables - Group 18.64 18.64 - 18.64
Borrowing {other than debt securities) - Group 1,564.51 1,564.51 - 1,564.51 -
Other financial lizbilities - group 5.22 5.22 - 5.22 -
Other financiat ligbilities 212.88 212.88 212 88
Total 1,819.09 1,819.09 - 1,819.069 -

31 March 2022

TGLal Carryimng
Particulars amount Total fair value Level § Level 2 Level 3
Financial assets:
Cash and cash equivalent 10.79 10.79 10.79 - -
Bank bafances other than cash and cash equivalent 7.32 7.32 732 - -
Trade receivables 0.18 c.18 - ¢.18 -
Trade receivables - Group 0.62 0.52 - 052
Loans - Group 951.84 951.84 - 951.84 -
Investments at amortised cost 3.87 3.87 - 3.87 -
investments at cost - Group 2,73013 2,730.13 - 2,73013 -
Other financial assets 8.55 8.55 - 8.5%
Other financial assets - Group 66.86 66.86 66.86 - -
Total 3,780.16 3,780.16 84.97 3,695.19 -
Financial labitities:
Trade payables 551 5.51 551
Trade payables - Group 3.02 8.02 - 8.02
Subordinated liabilities - Group 4,133.13 4,133.13 - 4,133.13 -
Other financial liabilities - group 20.89 20.89 - 2089 -
Other financiai lisbilities 120.15 120.15 120.15
Total 4,287.70 4,287.706 - 4,287.70 -




Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in miflions)
44  Falr values of financial instruments {continued)
(¢} Movement in level 3 financial instruments measured at fair value

The following table shows a reconciliation of the opening balances and the closing batances for fair value measurements in Level 3 of

Stock in trade - Nifty Total

Particulars linked debentures

At 1 April 2022 . -
Purchase 970.05 970.05
Sales - -
Issuances - -
Settlements - -
Gains / (losses} for the period (2022-23) recognised in profit or loss {inciuding accrued

interest) 4.95 4.95
At 31 March 2023 975.00 975.00
Unrealised gains / {losses) related to balances held at the end of the period 4.94 4.94

Stock in trade - Nifty Total

Particulars
linked debentures

At 1 April 2021
Purchase

Sales
Issuances
Settlements
Gains / {losses) for the period {2021-22) recognised in profit or loss -
At 31 March 2022

Unrealised gains / (losses) related to balances held at the end of the period -
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Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continired}
(Currency : Indian rupees in millions}

45  Total market risk exposure
Fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variables such as interest rates, foreign exchange
rates and equity prices. The Company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or non-trading portfolios and manages each of those
portfolios separately. Such risks the market risk for the trading portfolio is managed and monitored based on a VaR methadology that reflacts the

interdependency between risk variables. Non-trading positions are managed and monitored using other sensitivity analyses.

Market Risk can affect the Company's income o« the vafue of its holdings of financial instruments due to adverse movements in market prices of
instrument due to price risk. The objective of the Company’s market risk management is to manage and controf market risk exposures within
acceptable parameters.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022

Larrying Nan-traded
Particulars amount Traded risk  |Non-traded risk| Casrying amount | Traded risk risk
Assets
Cash and cash equivalent and ather bank
balances 24.64 - 24.64 18.11 - 18.11
Derivative finandial instruments 26.78 26.78 - 32.47 3247 -
Stack-in-trade 2,493.78 2,493.78 - 789.91 789.91 -
Loans - - - 951.84 - 951.84
Trade receivables 0.73 - 0.73 G.18 - 0.18
Trade Receivables - Group 23.57 - 23.57 0.62 - 0.62
investments at cost- Group 2,730.13 B 2,730,313 2,730.13 - 2,730.13
Investments - at amortised cost - - - 3.87 - 3.87
Other financial assets 17.08 0.35 16.73 75.41 56.86 8.55
Total 5,316.71 2,520.91 2,795.80 4,602.54 889.24 3,713.30
Liability
Borrowings (other than Debt Securities)-
Group 1,564.51 - 1,564.51 - - -
Suberdinated liabilities - Group - - - 4,133.13 - 4,133.13
Derivative financial nstruments 22.12 22.12 - - -
Trade payables 17.84 - 17.84 551 - 5.51
Trade payables - Group 18.64 - 18.64 8.02 - 8,02
Other financiaf Hab#ities - Group 212.88 - 212.88 20.89 - 20.89
Other financial liabiiities 5.22 5.22 120.15 - 120.15
Total 1,841.21 2212 1,819.09 4,287.70 - 4,287.70
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Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements (Continued)
{Currency : Indian rupees in miliicns)

47 Distlosure related to collaterai

Following table sets out availability of Company financial assets to support funding

Piedge as Available as Total carrying
31 March 2023 collateral] others 1* collaterat others 2° amount
Cash and cash equivalents including bank
bafance 7.18 - - 17.46 24.64
Stock in trade 2,476.09 - - 17.69 2,493.78
Trade receivables - - 24.30 - 24.30
Derivative assets - - - 26.78 26.78
Investments 221.86 - 2,508.27 - 2,730.13
Other financial assets 0.60 - - 16.48 17.08
Current tax assets {net) - - - 48.00 48.00
Deferred tax assets (net) - - - 234.68 234.68
Property, plant and eguipment - - - 3421 34.21
Other Intangible assets - - - 0.32 0.32
Other non financial assets - - - 74.61 74.61
Total assets 2,705.73 - 2,532.57 470.23 5,708.53

Pledge as Available as Total carrying
31 March 2022 coltateral] others 1! collaterat others 2° amount
Cash and cash eguivalent including bank
balance 7.18 - - 10.93 18.11
Stack in trade 775.09 - - 10.82 785.91
Trade receivables - - 0.80 - 0.80
Derivative assets - - - 32.47 32.47
Loans - - - 951.85 551.84
Investments 221.86 - 2,508.28 3.87 2,734.00
Other financial assets 0.60 - - 74.81 75.41
Current tax assets (net) 45,65 45.65
Deferred tax assets {net} 230.46 230.46
Praperty, plant and equipment - - - 8.18 8.18
Other Intangible assets - - - 0.00 0.00
Other non financial assets - - - 31.89 31.89
Total assets 1,008.72 - 2,509.08 1,400.92 4,918.72

Represents assets which are not pledged and Company believes it is restricted from using to secure funding for legal or other
reason.

Represents assets which are not restricted for use as colfateral, but that the Company would not consider readily available to
secure funding in the normal course of business.

[

F MUMBAI
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tdelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements (Continued}

{Currency : Indiar: rupees in milfions)

Maturity analysis of assets and Habiiities
The table below shows an analysis of assets and liabilities analysed according to when they are expected to be recovered or settied.

31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particulars Within 12 months| After 12 months Total] Within 12 months| After 12 months Tatal
Financial assets
Cash and cash equivalents 17.28 - 17.28 10.79 - 10.79
Other bank balances 7.36 - 7.36 7.32 - 7.32
Derivative financialinstruments 26.78 - 26.78 32.47 - 32.47
Stock-in-trade 2,493.78 - 2,493.78 789.91 - 789.91
Other receivables 24.30 - 24.30 0.80 - 0.80
Loans - - - 951.84 - 951.84
Investments 123.38 2,606.25 2,730.13 127.75 2,606.25 2,734.00
Other financial assets 16.49 0.60 17.08 74.81 0.60 75.41
2,709.87 2,606.85 5,316.71 1,995.69 2,606.85 4,602.54
Non-financial assets
Current tax assets {net} .49 38.51 48.00 3.19 42.46 45.65
Deferred tax assets {net) - 23468 234.68 - 230.46 230.46
Property, plant and equipment - 34.21 4.21 - 8.18 8.18
Other intangible assets - 0.32 0.32 . 0.00 0.00
Other non-financial assets 74.61 - 74.61 31.89 - 31.89
84.10 307.72 391.82 35.08 281.10 316.18
Total assets 2,793.97 2,914.56 5,708.53 2,030.77 2,887.95 4,918.72
31 March 2023 31 March 2022
Particuiars Within 12 months| After 12 months Total] Within 12 months| After 12 months Tatal
Financiat liabilities
Derivative financial instruments 2212 22.12 - - R
QOther payables 36.48 - 36.48 1353 - 13.53
Borrowing (other than debt
securities) 1,564.51 - 1,564.51 - - -
Subordinated Liabilities - - - 4,133.13 - 4,133.13
Other financiai liabilities 218.10 - 218.10 141.04 - 141.04
1,841.21 - 1,841.21 4,287.70 - 4,287.79
Non-financial liabilities
Current tax liabilities {net) 5.77 - 5.77 5.65 - 5.65
Provisions 177 25.53 3331 3.10 17.77 20.87
QOther nan-financial liabilities 11.44 - 11.44 5.43 - 5.43
24.99 25.53 50.52 14.18 17.77 31.95
Total liabifities 1,866.20 25.53 1,891.73 4,301.88 17.77 4,319.65

F it o
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Edelcap Securities Limited

Notes to the financial statements [Continued)

[Currency : Indian rupees in millions)

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of financial instruments will fluctuate due to changes in market variabies such
as interest rates, foreign exchange rates and equity prices. The Company classifies exposures to market risk into either trading or
non-trading portfolios and manages each of those portfolios separately,

{i} Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk arises from the possibility that changes in interest rates will affect future cash flows or the fair values of financial
instruments.

The following table demonstrates the sensitivity to a reasonably possibie change in interest rates {all other variables being constant) of the
Company’s statement of profit and loss and equity.

2022-23
Currency of borrowing / Increase in IRF Effect on profit Effect on Decrease in IRF | Effect on profit Effect on
advances price {%) before tax Equity price {%) before tax Equity
INR 5 (80.96) - 5 3096 -
2021-22
Currency of berrowing / increase in IRF Effect on profit Effect on Pecrease in JRF | Effect on profit Effect on
advances price (%) before tax Equity price (%) before tax Equity
INR 5 {116.27}) - 5 116.27 -

{it} Currency risk

Currency risk is the risk that the value of a financial instrument will fluctuate due to changes in foreign exchange rates. Foreign currency risk
arise majorly on account of foreign currency borrowings.

The table below indicates the currencies to which the Company had significant exposure at the end of the reported periods. The analysis
calcylates the effect of a reasonably possible movement of the currency rate against the INR (all other variables being constant) on the
statement of profit and loss {due to the fair value of currency sensitive non-trading monetary assets and liabilities) and equity (due to the

change in fair value of currency swaps and forward foreign exchange contracts used as cash flow hedges}.

2022-23
tncrease in Effect on profit Effect on Decrease in Effect on profit Effect on
Currency currency tate {%) before tax Equity currency rate {%) hefore tax Equity
UsD 5 {1.03) 5 1.03
2021-22
increase in Effect on profit Effect on Decrease in Effect on profit Effect on
Currency currency rate (%) before tax Equity currency rate {%) kefore tax Equity
LsD 5 (54.77) 5 54.77




49

Edelcap Securities Limited
Notes to the financial statements {Continued}
{Currency : indian rupees in millions)

Market risk

{iii} Equity price risk

Equity price risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of

individual investment in equity share prices.

2022-23
Increase in equity | Effect on profit Effect on Decrease in Effect on profit Effect on
Impact on price {%) before tax Equity equity price (%) befare tax Equity
Derivatives 5 22.85 5 (22.85)
Mutual fund wnits 5 537 5 (5.37)
Equity instruments 5 0.45 5 (0.45}
Debt instrurents 5 118.87 5 (118.87)
2021-22
Increase in equity | Effect on profit Effect on Decrease in Effect on profit Effect on
Impact on price {%) before tax Equity equity price (%) before tax Equity
Derivatives 5 - 5 -
Mutual fund units S 10.04 5 (10.04)
Equity instruments 5 0.52 5 (0.52)
Debt instruments 5 2893 5 (28.93)

(iv) Index price risk

Index price risk is the risk that the fair vaiue or future cash flows of & financial instrument will fluctuate because of changes in the level of

equity indices.

2022-23
Increase inindex | Effect on profit Effect on Decrease in Effect on profit Effect on
frmpact on price (%) before tax Equity index price {%) before tax Equity
Derivatives 5 26.47 - 5 (26.47) -
2021-22
increase inindex | Effect on profit Effect on Decrease in Effect on profit Effect on
{impact on price (%) hefore tax Equity index price (%) before tax Equity
Derivatives 5 {7.87) B 5 7.87 -
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50 Cashflow disclosure

Change in liabilities arising from financing activities

Cash Changes in
Particulars 1 April 2022 flows fair values Others 31 March 2023
Berrowings other than debt
securities {0.00) 1,554.78 - 9.73 1,564.50
Subordinated liabdities 4,133.13 {4,133.13) - - 0.00
Total liabilities from financing
activities 4,133.13 {2,578.35) - 9.73 1,564.50
Cash Changesin
Particulars 1 April 2021 flows fair vailues Cthers 31 March 2022
Borrowings other than debt
securities 2,384.19 {2,372.45) - {11.74) {0.00}
Subordinated iiabilities 4,376.25 {243.12) - - 4,133.13
Total liabilities from financing
activities 6,760.44 (2,615.56) . {11.74} 4,133.14
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51
(i}

Gther Disclosures

Relationship with Struck off Companies

Below are the transactions with the companies struck off under section 248 of Companies Act, 2013 or section 560 of Companies

Act, 1956.
MName of the struck off company Nature of Relationship with {Balance Balance
transactions with  [the Struck off outstanding as on [outstanding as on
struck-off Company [company, if any, |31 March 2023 31 March 2022

to be disclosed

S.K.R Infotech Payable None - -
Kamal Enterprises Payable Nane - -
Shams Cable Network Payable None - 0.00
Total - 0.00

{ii} During the year, no funds have been advanced or leaned or invested (either from borrowed funds or share premium or any other
scurces or kind of funds) by the company to or in any other person(s) or entity{ies), including foreign entities (“Intermediaries”),
with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the Intermediary shall, whether, directly or indirectly lend
or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the company (“"Ultimate
Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behalf of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

{iii) During the year, no funds have been received by the company from any person(s) or entity(ies), including foreign entities {“Funding
Parties”), with the understanding, whether recorded in writing or otherwise, that the company shail, whether, directly or indirectly,
lend or invest in other persons or entities identified in any manner whatsoever by or on behalf of the Funding Party {“Ultimate

Beneficiaries”) or provide any guarantee, security or the like on behaif of the Ultimate Beneficiaries.

(iv} Disclosure of Ratios
Sr. No. |Particulars 31 March 2023 31 March 2022
1 Total debts to total gssers e ot 1! 0.27 0.84
2 Net profit margin {9%) fefernote -109.24% 12.56%

1. Total debts to total assets = Total Oebt / Total assets

2. Net profit margin (%) = Net profit after tax / Total Income

3. Carrent ratio, Long term debt to working capital, Bad Debts to account receivables ratio, Current liability ratio, Debtors turnover,
Inventory turnover and Operating margin {%), Debt Service Coverage Ratio are not applicable owing to the business model of the

Company.
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52  Prior period comparatives

Previous year's figures have been regrouped and rearranged wherever necessary to conform to current year's presentation

As per our report of even date attached.

For GBI & Co. For and on behalf of Board of Directors

Chartered Accountant
ICAI Firm Registratigd No. 103429W
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